
1 

INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA  

REVISED 
Monday, October 16, 2023 – 7:30 p.m.  

Lakeshore Library – Community Room 

1. Call to Order, Welcome & Land Acknowledgement

2. Approval of Agenda       (copy & motion)

[Motion #2023.  – THAT the agenda of the October 16, 2023 meeting be
approved as presented.]

3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
None at time of agenda creation

4. Delegations to the Board
a) Programs & Services for Seniors  – Megan Legg & Max Lupo

Consent Agenda 

5. Approval of Previous Minutes  (copy) 

6. Correspondence    (copy) 

7. Reports for Information

a) CEO Report     (copy) 

b) Municipal Council Report   (copy & information sharing) 

c) Library Board Report     (information sharing) 

d) Board Committee Reports   (copy & information sharing) 

i. Fundraising Committee

ii. Truth & Reconciliation Committee

iii. CEO Evaluation Committee

e) Health & Safety Update  (copy) 

Consent Recommendation 

[Motion #2023.  – THAT the consent agenda items 5a.01.01 to 7e.01.01, 
and the recommendations contained therein be approved as presented.] 

2a.01.01 



 

2 
 

 
 
Agenda 
 
8. Reports for Action 

 
a) LIB-10-2023 Mileage Reimbursement Rate Change 

 
[Motion #2023. – THAT the Staff Report LIB-10-2023 Mileage 
Reimbursement Rate Change be received and the recommendations 
contained therein be approved as presented.] 

 
9. Business Arising 

 
a) 2021 Unaudited Draft Financial Statements           (copy &motion) 

[Motion #2023.   THAT the 2021 Unaudited Draft Financial Statements be 

approved as presented.] 

b) 2022 Unaudited Draft Financial Statements           (copy &motion) 

[Motion #2023.   THAT the 2022 Unaudited Draft Financial Statements be 

approved as presented.] 

 
10. Policies 
  

a) EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #E-2023-22 
(copy & motion) 

 
b) EMPLOYMENT – Corrective Action Policy #E-2023-23 

(copy & motion) 
 

 
Recommendation 
 

[Motion #2023. – THAT the EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct 
Policy #E-2023-22 and the EMPLOYMENT – Corrective Action Policy #E-
2023-23 be approved as presented.]  
 

 
11.  Strategic Issues 

 None at time of agenda creation 



 

3 
 

 
           

12.   New Business 
None at time of Agenda Creation 
 

 
13. Comments and Announcements 
 a)   Calendar of Events               (link) 
 https://innisfil.bibliocommons.com/events/search/index 

 

  
14. In Camera 

No in camera at time of agenda creation 
  

15. Adjournment  
 

[Motion #2023. – THAT the meeting be adjourned] 
 

  

https://innisfil.bibliocommons.com/events/search/index


 

4 
 

 
CORRESPONDENCE LIST for October 16, 2023 

 

6a.01.01 
Mashable, October 2, 2023, article entitled This Virtual Library Restores 

Banned Books to Read for Free, written by Meera Navlakha 

 

(copy) 

6a.02.01 

The Hub, October, 3, 2023, article entitled The Boring Solution to Book-

Banning Bureaucrats: Leave Libraries to the Librarians, written by Janet 

Bufton 

 

(copy) 

6a.03.01 
The Japan Times, October 3, 2023, article entitled Libraries with 

Individually Owned Bookshelves Spreading in Japan, written by Jiji 

 

(copy) 

6a.04.01 

The Canadian Urban Institute, report entitled Overdue: The Case for 

Canada’s Public Libraries 

CUI_Overdue_report_10.04.23.pdf (canurb.org) 

 

(link) 

6a.05.01 

County of Simcoe report entitled Simcoe County Positive Aging Strategy: 

Older Adults Strengthening Our Communities 

Positive Aging Strategy 2017_jan18_low res.pdf (simcoe.ca) 

 

(link) 

6a.06.01 
Canadian Federation of Library Associations (CFLA) article entitled  

Canadian Guidelines on Library and Information 

(copy) 

6a.07.01 York Region, report entitled Seniors Strategy 
(copy) 

6a.08.01 

YorkRegion.com, October 3, 2023, article entitled Can We Stop Chronic 

Loneliness? York Region Take Lead in Prevention Strategy, written by Kim 

Zarzour 

 

(copy) 

 

https://canurb.org/wp-content/uploads/CUI_Overdue_report_10.04.23.pdf
https://www.simcoe.ca/LongTermCare/Documents/Positive%20Aging%20Strategy%202017_jan18_low%20res.pdf


1 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for September 18, 2023 

INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD  
MEETING MINUTES  

Monday, September 18, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 
Lakeshore Library – Community Room 

In Attendance: Anne Smith, Rob Nicol, Councillor Jennifer Richardson, 
Councillor Robert Saunders, Barb Baguley, Sue Bennett, 
Rhonda Flanagan, Cynthia Gordon 

Staff in Attendance: Erin Scuccimarri, Jennifer Miyasaki, Audrey Webb,  
Jana Abrams 

Regrets: Raj Grover 

1. CALL TO ORDER, WELCOME AND LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

• The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.

• The Board Chair delivered the Land Acknowledgement Statement.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion #2023.61 
Moved by:  Jennifer Richardson 
Seconded by: Rhonda Flanagan 

THAT the agenda of the September 18, 2023, meeting be approved as 
presented. 

CARRIED. 

3. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTEREST
There were no disclosures of pecuniary interest.

4. DELEGATIONS TO THE BOARD

• Audrey Webb, Town Treasurer, and Jana Abrahams, Town Financial Analyst,
shared an overview of the 2022 Unaudited Financial Statements to the Board.

CONSENT AGENDA 
5. Approval of Previous Minutes
6. Correspondence
7. Reports for Information

• The CEO provided further detail on the community outreach, special events
and staffing (summer students) highlighted in the summer CEO Reports;
Drag Queen Storytime in July was a very successful event; Staff Pick
displays are being well received; grant funds received will be used to fund
seniors’ programs

5a.01.01



2 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for September 18, 2023 
 

• The Board Chair expressed gratitude to staff for all of the events and 
programs they have been running. 

• It was suggested that a member of the Library Services team present at an 
upcoming meeting about assisting patrons in crisis; how we can connect 
them with resources; planning mental health training program for staff next 
year to better equip them for these situations. 
 

Committee Updates: 

• Rhonda Flanagan shared an update on the Fundraising Committee Meeting; 
a TipTap board has been installed for donations; planning a gala fundraising 
event – date is February 29, 2024 and then every 4 years after that; themes 
are being discussed; meeting with staff to work on a “giving” campaign. 

• The Board Chair provided an update for the Truth & Reconciliation 
Committee; will work on improving our Land Acknowledgement Statement; 
Cynthia Gordon has been working on partnerships. 
 

Library Board Roundtable updates: 

• The Board, CEO and Executive Assistant had a roundtable update;  items 
shared included books of interest and local events attended such as Fresh 
Air Flicks, Neighbourhood Nights, Living Library, the Rotary Harvest Dinner 
and MakerFest; Chair Smith advised that there was a recent roundtable with 
the Innisfil Community Foundation and previous fund recipients for an update 
on the benefit/impact they’ve made with the funds they’ve received from the 
Foundation 

• Upcoming Town event: the raising and then lowering of Every Child Matters 
flag at Town Hall. 

 
Motion #2023.62 
 Moved by:   Barb Baguley 
 Seconded by: Rob Saunders 
 
 THAT the consent agenda items 5a.01.01 to 7e.02.01, and the recommendations 

contained therein be approved as presented. 
CARRIED. 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

8. REPORTS FOR ACTION 
 

a) Staff Report LIB-08-2023 Decolonization of the First Nations of Simcoe 
County Website 
 

Motion #2023.63 
Moved by:  Rhonda Flanagan   
Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon 



3 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for September 18, 2023 
 

 
THAT the Staff Report LIB-08-2023 Decolonization of the First Nations of Simcoe 
County Website be received and the recommendations contained therein be 
approved as presented.  

CARRIED. 
 

 
b) Staff Report LIB-09-2023 Innisfil Community Foundation Agreement 

• The CEO provided background information on the agreement and advised 
next steps. 
 

Motion #2023.64 
Moved by:  Rob Saunders   
Seconded by: Rhonda Flanagan 
 
(The Board Chair abstained from voting due to a conflict of interest.) 

 
THAT the Staff Report LIB-09-2023 Innisfil Community Foundation Agreement 
be received and the recommendations contained therein be approved as 
presented. 

CARRIED. 
 
9. BUSINESS ARISING 

a) Operating Surplus 
 

Motion #2023.65 
Moved by:  Barb Baguley   
Seconded by:  Sue Bennett 
      
THAT the 2022 operating surplus in the amount of $79,015.00 be moved from 
the 2022 operating surplus to the Library Computer Reserves account. 
 

          CARRIED. 
10. POLICY  

a) OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Health and Safety Policy #2023-18 
 

b) EMPLOYMENT – Employee Benefits Policy #E-2023-19 
 

c) EMPLOYMENT – Police Record (Background) Checks for Staff & Volunteers 
Policy #E-2023-20 

 

d) EMPLOYMENT – Injury and Illness Prevention Policy #E-2023-21 
 

e) EMPLOYMENT – COVID-19 Safety Policy #E-2022-29 



4 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for September 18, 2023 
 

 

Motion #2023.66 
Moved by:  Rob Nicol 
Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon 

THAT the OPERATING & TECHNOLOGY – Health and Safety Policy #2023-18,  
the EMPLOYMENT – Employee Benefits Policy #E-2023-19, the EMPLOYMENT – 
Police Record (Background) Checks for Staff & Volunteers Policy #E-2023-20, and 
the EMPLOYMENT – Illness & Injury Prevention Policy #E-2023-21 be approved 
as presented;  
AND FURTHER THAT the EMPLOYMENT – COVID-19 Safety Policy #E-2022-29 
be repealed. 

CARRIED. 

11. STRATEGIC ISSUES 
 There were no Strategic Issues to discuss this month. 

 
 
12.  NEW BUSINESS 

No new business 
 
 

13. COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCMENTS 
a) Calendar of Events 

o Link to Library offerings was provided in the agenda. 
 
 

14. IN CAMERA  
 

Motion #2023.67 
Moved by:  Jennifer Richardson 
Seconded by: Barb Baguley 

 

THAT the Board holds a “Closed Session” Committee of the Whole meeting as 

provided for by the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended, the Public Libraries Act, 

R.S.O. c. P.44, and the Board’s Procedural By-Law Policy #B-2023-03 to deal 

with: 

a) advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications 
necessary for that purpose. 

CARRIED. 

Motion #2023.68 
Moved by:  Rhonda Flanagan 
Seconded by: Cynthia Gordon 



5 
 

Innisfil Public Library Board Meeting Minutes for September 18, 2023 
 

THAT the Board now rise and report on the “In Camera” Session and resume the 

regular Board meeting. 

 CARRIED. 

 

 
15.   ADJOURNMENT 

Motion #2023.69 
  Moved by:  Barb Baguley 
  

THAT the meeting be adjourned at  8:40 p.m. 
CARRIED. 

 
 
 

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 

The next Library Board meeting will be held on 
Monday, October 16, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

Innisfil Public Library & ideaLAB – Lakeshore Branch – Community Room 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________  ________________________________ 
Anne Smith, Board Chair    Erin Scuccimarri, Secretary 



�����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������� ���������

���!�	��"�������#�"���������������$��$����$�������$����$������ ��%

�"��&�'���()*+�,*-./01�1*2-0-3�-4+.5-4+�206647�2558+�.5�-407�95-9-44:;<������"�������������������"��������������=�������������!�!����������������#:>��������?�<���������@�������������

A�����	�BC'
���D���C������
!!#EF�GH�IHJKLMLNLHFLN�OLPLOQ�LNIMGFRSHGO�TKLLNSU�RH�EULKRMG�RV�RH�JLKROWXGFRSHYRNL�ZSS[�ZGHV�\GPL�VSGKLNQ�YRF\�M\GOOLH]LV�FS�ZSS[V�\GPRH]�KLJSKFLNÔNSIZOLN�RH�_̀__�VRHML�F\L�JKLPRSIV�̂LGKW�a\L�TKLLNSU�FS�KLGN�GHN�OLGKH�RV�RH�bILVFRSHQ\SYLPLKQ�GV�F\L�MKLGFSK�ST�cde�fgfh�ijklemnQ�XR[SOL�oGHHG\pqSHLVQ�VĜVQ�rsRHNRH]�tŜRH�F\L�URNVF�ST�F\LVL�ZSS[�ZGHV�RV�LGV̂�ZLMGIVLWWWMSUUIHRFRLV�GHN�JGKFRMIOGKÔ�̂SIH]JLSJOL�GKL�TR]\FRH]�ZGM[Q�GKL�NLUGHNRH]�G�TKLLNSU�FS�KLGN�GHN�OLGKH�GHN�ZLIHMSUTSKFGZOLWr 
Bu;vDwx;�;?D

6a.01.01

jmiyasaki
Inserted Text



�����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������� ���������

���!�	��"�������#�"���������������$��$����$�������$����$������ ��%

&''�()&*+�,������������������������������������-./0123�345�.607�8/..90:3:52�60;�<:=>6>:52�?:143:01�?/>�34:2�?90;6.5036<�>:143@�:2A45�B:1:36<�C9=<:8�D:=>6>7�/?�-.5>:86�EBCD-F@�G4:84�8>5635;�A45�H6005;�H//I�J<9=�:0K9<7�LMLN@�85.503:01�345�=5<:5O5�3463�P>56;5>2�5O5>7G45>5�24/9<;�=5�6=<5�3/�688522�345=//I2�3457�G603�3/�>56;QP�C/G5>5;�=7�345�C6<685�C>/R583@�6�0/0ST>/?:3�;5;:8635;�3/=>/6;50:01�688522�3/�<:=>6>7�>52/9>852�60;�=//I2@�345�=//I�8<9=�462�G/>I5;�3/�>5O/I5=602�60;�>523/>5�688522�3/�5O5>7�T:585�/?�<:35>639>5�3463�462�=550�U9523:/05;�:0-.5>:86QA45�O:>396<�<:=>6>:52�5236=<:245;�=7�345�BCD-�925�VCWS=625;�15/S36>153:01�3/�3>68I�60;>58/>;�=//I2�=6005;�=7�</863:/0Q�X0�</863:/02�G45>5�85>36:0�=//I2�6>5�=6005;@�345H6005;�H//I�J<9=�.6I52�34525�=//I2�?>55�3/�688522Q�A45�8<9=Y2�<:23�/?�=6005;�=//I2�:2<6>15<7�=625;�/0�345�;636=625�T93�3/15345>�?/>�ZO5>7D:=>6>7�=7�B>Q�A622<70�[610922/0Q\25>2�860�6<2/�>5T/>3�=//I�=602�3/�345�/>160:]63:/0QX0�4/0/>�/?�̂63:/06<�H6005;�H//I�_55I@�G4:84�>902�?>/.�̀83Q�a�3/�b@�345�H6005;�H//IJ<9=�462�.6;5�:32�T>525085�I0/G0�:0�345�23635�/?�A5c62@�G4:84�:2�=5:01�3/935;�62�345=6005;�=//I�86T:36<�/?�345�8/903>7Q�D623�756>@�A5c62�.6;5�345�./23�6335.T32�3/�>523>:83/>�/93>:143�=60�=//I2@�.607�/?�G4:84�46O5�?/8925;�/0�25c96<:37@�150;5>�:;503:37@�/>>685Q�A/�.6I5�6�23635.503@�345�/>160:]63:/0�462�8>5635;�3>6O5<<:01�=:<<=/6>;2�3463�46O5=550�T<685;�:0�?>/03�/?�<60;.6>I2�<:I5�345�\0:O5>2:37�/?�A5c62@�345�23635�86T:3/<�:0-923:0@�60;�345�D<60/�J/9037�C9=<:8�D:=>6>7�d�345�<6335>�2:33:01�63�345�85035>�/?�60/01/:01�=633<5�616:023�?>55�2T5584Q



�����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������� ���������

���!�	��"�������#�"���������������$��$����$�������$����$������ ��%

&�����	�'���(������(��&���# 
)*+,'-.+�+/'
01234�5631789:;<�=>?:�@�ABBC�>D�A@EE:F�G;B?�@�H>A;@;<I�J:K;:�LB>EL�=B�M:HN�NO=�>=�;>LM=�A@PCI7;:@FD�=M:�Q@EE:F�QBBC�RHOAKD�J:AD>=:S�7TO;�?>DD>BE�>D�=B�N;B9>F:�@E<BE:�JMB�>D�>E�@H>A;@;<�=M@=�M@D�A@EE:F�@�ABBC�@PP:DD�=B�=M:�F>L>=@H�9:;D>BE�GB;�G;::S7UVWXYVZ�[Y\]̂V_\̀a�ŴYV]X]b�ĉdŶ\e�̂_�f]XggŴef�âYh�i\ZV]e�YVdh[dh\\W�j_V_�khXYlmn�Y\�ZVYV]iêV�aĥdh�o\\p_�X]V�oXeeVZqVrX]�sj]Y\e�dXWW_�c\]�p̂Z_�Y\�]VXZ�oXeeVZ�o\\p_t�s\\pn\p�]Vd\iiVeZXŶ\e_�b\j�hXuV�Y\�]VXZ�̂e�vwvxs\\pn\p�Ved\j]XfV_�]VXẐef�X_�Xe�XV_YhVŶd�XeZ�e\�\eV�̂_�_XcV�c]\i�̂Y_�fXyV



�����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������� ���������

���!�	��"�������#�"���������������$��$����$�������$����$������ ��%

&'(�)*+(*,�-./*�0('1+**�2+3/4*�5/-.�6�*/708+�9/(-)68�8/2(6(:�16(;,�5./1.�'0+4*�-.+�;''(*-'�6�5/;+<(643/43�8/2(6(:�5/-.�6�*/708+�='1)*>�?+(+@*�.'5�-'�3+-�*-6(-+;>ABACD�AEFG�$H�"������#IJCA�KBL�MGGNO���P������P�Q�����!!#RSTU�VW�NXYZ[X\]�ŜT�_\[\̀T�_aXbT̀S�\UUcd./*�/*�696/8628+�/4�-.+�e00�f-'(+�'(�'4�g''38+�h86:>RSTU�iW�RT\à �̂jXa�ŜT�k\ZZT]�kXXl�m[noc

p�����	�O���P������P�Q���#



�����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������� ���������

���!�	��"�������#�"���������������$��$����$�������$����$������ %�&

'()*�+,�-./01�23�(4)�')((/356�/023�7(�(4)�82((29�:/54(;<=>=?�@ABCC=D�AEEF�GHIJ@�KLEIHD�BMM=B>N'()*�O,�-:)7()�P2Q:�./8:7:P�07:R;GHSTF�EC�@G>=BU=�GB>D@�ICD=>�UL=�ABCC=D�AEEF�GHIJ�MBV=�BCD�WSHH�EIU�UL=�SCKU>ITUSECKN

X�����	�Y���Z������Z�[���#'()*�\,�]):/̂P�P2Q:�)97/.;_EI�̀SHH�>=T=Sa=�BC�=bBSH�W>Eb�UL=�BMM�BKFSCV�cEI�UE�THSTF�B�a=>SWSTBUSEC�HSCFN'()*�d,�e)(Q:3�(2�(4)�f7.70)�7**�73R�.25�/3�Q6/35�(4)�./8:7:P�87:02R)�3Q98):73R�P2Q:�*766g2:R;



�����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������� ���������

���!�	��"�������#�"���������������$��$����$�������$����$������ %�&

'(()*�+*,-*./*01-21)(�3(45)2()67789�:;�9�<=>?=87�@7AB8?78�9?�69;C9D>7E�FB:G:GH�?C7�IJ�?79K�:G�LMLNO�PC7�Q8:?7;9DB=?�R:H:?9>�S=>?=87E�K7G?9>�C79>?CE�D:H�?7SCE�7G?78?9:GK7G?E�9GR�KB87O�T78�QB8U�C9;9>;B�D77G�A=D>:;C7R�:G�VWX�YXZ�[\]̂�V_̀XaE�b_cXE�b\deX�fgh_iE�9GR�B?C78;O3(j5kk(lm(m�n5)�o51p-5l�'1q.rq�s�tul*--v�*w)((q�25�q(22-(k(l2�2*-.q�xu2/1l4*um�-*um�5tt�yxu22()�(k4-5v((qz����������z��������"!�����������!�"�������{������#�����������{�������"������#|}~��~�|�� ����i����_ghX]

�C7�G=KD78�Q9;�A8B�:R7R��:9�?C7��78:�:S9?:BG�7K9:>O�2(4�����5xl-5*m�v51)�tu)q2��55.��*lm��(wul�)(*mulw��B=�S9G�SC7SU�B=?�=A�?B��:�7�?:?>7;�9?�9�?:K7O��9SC�DBBU�S9G�D7�SC7SU7R�B=?��B8�LN�R9�;Oy54ujq�
���{��"���� 
����z������zy/(�4()t(j2��-(lm�5t�qx((2�*lm�/(*2��2/(�+p���x((2��+�4ujv��ulwq�t)5k��54(v(q�z������������������������������������� ��������������������{���������������¡�������¢���!����¡�������"�£!����¤
�����54(v(q�0*l*m* ¥�������



�����������	�
��� ����������������������������������������������	���������������������������������������� ��

���!�	��������"��������������#�������$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��%

&'()*�+,-*.( /0*.1)2�34�5653 7 8 9 :
;<=*)(�*.�*><=�'2*<0?)@>'*A=�<(�*>)�?<12'2BC�D(E�F>.�E)0<E)=CG>'*A=�'�H,)=*<.(�=.I)�'2)�J.(E)2<(K�'-*)2�'J..2?BLF2<**)(�M+M�<(N)=*<K'*<.(�.-�O))?P<=*2<0*�=0>..?=�F<*>�>'?-L)IJ*B�=>)?N)=4�I<==<(K�1)?.N)E�*)Q*=�?<R)�STU�VUWXYZ[\WX�]̂_UẀabb̂W4�'(E�1..R=�.-�,(<N)2='??B�2)0.K(<c)E�N'?,)4�?<R)�D(()d2'(RA=�E<'2Be�G>)�'2K,I)(*�'1.,*�F>'*A=�'JJ2.J2<'*)�I'*)2<'?�-.2�0><?E2)(�<(�=0>..?=�<=,('N.<E'1?)e�D(E�'?*>.,K>�<*�0'(�1)�-2,=*2'*<(K4�<*A=�J2.1'1?B�'?=.�K..E�-.2>)?J<(K�,=�*.�*)=*�.,2�.F(�N<)F=�'(E�>)?J�.*>)2=�E.�*>)�='I)e�f(�'�J,1?<0

ghijklhmnopqrs�tuvswqx�yzr�{w|}q~��w�us}wq�sw{ww��{pqq}q~�{u|rpu�|ps�x��rp�r�}{|p|}r��sw�szr��}{|p|}pq��U�a�a�[��̂��Z_��Ta�T��������Ub�[\�a[���T��b���T�Zb���U�bU�_�_��_TU�b��̂b�U�̀UW_��ba�ŴWâ[�
/(*'2<.��E,0'*<.(��<(<=*)2��*)J>)(�;)00)�'(E�O'*2<0)�+'2()=4�O'2?<'I)(*'2B�D==<=*'(*�*.�*>)��<(<=*)2�.-��E,0'*<.(2)'E�*.�0><?E2)(�E,2<(K�'�J>.*.�.JJ.2*,(<*B�'*�'(��*.1<0.R)�?<12'2B4�1)-.2)�'�I'R<(K�'��.N)2(I)(*'((.,(0)I)(*4�<(�G.2.(*.4��,(E'B4�DJ2<?���4�5653e�M>2<=��.,(K�G>)�M'('E<'(�O2)==e� ��	�� ��	��
������  ¡¢� £ ¤¥¦§�̈©ª«¬®§̄°°�±¥©°§® ²lhm

6a.02.01



�����������	�
��� ����������������������������������������������	���������������������������������������� ��

���!�	��������"��������������#�������$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��%

&'())*�&+&,-./�,(-�0123-*24-&�,(5,�6-�)7-8�62**�9-�3-,-8.24-3�,(8)10(�:19*2'325*)01-�543�8-&:)4&29*-�0);-84.-4,&<�=-�&()1*3�8-&2&,�,(-�180-�,)�.5>-�,()&-�0123-*24-&�,))�&:-'2?'<@�(5;-�5�385.5,2'5**+�327-8-4,�8-53240�)A�,(-�)820245*�BCB�&,)8+�A8).�,(-8-53240�24�DEF�GHI�9+�C8254�J2K>-.5<�L(-�-.:,+240�)A�&'())*�*29858+�&(-*;-&65&�4),�5�8-&:)4&-�,)�328-',2)4&�,(5,�'5.-�M&,8520(,�A8).�,(-�,):N<�O&8-53-8&�6-8-�24A)8.-3�24�:585085:(�P')14,&P�QR�)A�,(-�BCB�&,)8+/�,(-6--3240�:8)'-&&�M8)**-3�)1,�68)40NSTUV�24�*24-�62,(�24&,81',2)4&�A8).�,(-.242&,-8�)8�-;-4�,(-�&'())*�9)583<�W5,(-8�,(54�-;5*15,240�9))>&�5'')83240�,)�5�918-51'85,2'�91,�95&2'5**+9-4204�:8)'-&&�X3-&'829-3�&,58,240�24�:585085:(�YZ[�,(5,�&,58,&�62,(�9))>&,(5,�58-�5,�*-5&,�?A,--4�+-58&�)*3/�*29858254&�24�&-;-85*�&'())*&�'1**-3�9))>&95&-3�)4�:19*2'5,2)4�35,-�5*)4-�X.53-�'*-58�24�:585085:(�\Y[<�L(-&-�3-,52*&59)1,�6(5,�&'())*&�6-8-�]̂VH]__̀�VU_a�VU�aU�&()1*3�9-�A8)4,�543�'-4,8-�24�,(-&,)8+/�4),�9182-3�5A,-8�6()*-�&-',2)4&�)A�&:-'1*5,2)4�59)1,�()6�-b12,+'82,-825�̂UH_a�VEFUcFVd̂]__̀�(5;-�-43540-8-3�,(-�')4,-4,�)A�&'())*�*298582-&<L(-8-�58-�,(8--�95'>08)143�45885,2;-&�,)�,(2&�&,)8+e�O�385.5,2'�24'8-5&-�249))>�&1::8-&&2)4�24�f<g<�&'())*&�543�:19*2'�*298582-&/�6)882-&�59)1,�M6)>-:)*2,2'&N/�543�5�4--3�9+�,()&-�A-3�1:�62,(�(+:-8h:58,2&54&(2:�A)8�9),(�&23-&,)�9-�68)40<i)8.5**+/�5�9182-3�*-3-�2&�K1&,544)+240<�@4�,(2&�:)*2,2'5*�'*2.5,-/�2,j&>243*240<�@�(5;-�4)�3)19,�,(5,�A85.240543�').:)&240�,(-�&,)8+�,)�-k:*)2,�,(-'1*,18-�658�0),�5�*),�)A�'*2'>&<�C1,�)4-)A�,(-�9-&,�5801.-4,&�A)8�5�:19*2'4-6&�50-4'+�2&�,(5,/�62,(�&-'18-A143240/�,(-+�&()1*3�4),�9-�&19K-',�,),(-�:8-&&18-�,)�&-4&5,2)45*2l-�4-6&59)1,�5�9545*�&,57�&'8-6h1:�24,)&).-,(240�:)*2,2'5**+�-*-',82'<�L(2&�5**�(5::-4-3�,6)�6-->&�50)<�@,�2&&,2**�0456240�5,�.-�9-'51&-�2,�:1,&�5,82&>�,(-�')4,8)*�)A�&'())*�*298582-&�Ì_dIc]cd]Tm�543�4),�9+�918-51'85,&�)8:)*2,2'254&<�J2K>-.5/�*51359*+/�3)-&�4),�654,�,)&--�*298582-&�24�B54535�0)�,(-�65+�)A�f<g<�*298582-&�24�6(2'(�:)*2,2'254&�543

nopqrst�nouvuwx�yo�royzxt�yxx{�v|x�}~}g-54�g:--8�|x�}oyuxt�sv��xu�stx�tq�u�yz�sy{�v|x��x{�s�sy�v�|�{x��vu{�usppo�yv�xyv�)6583�O40*24���{�tx�ot{�����ztsv�oy�uo�x�x�pxtvu��xstyx��o�xtu�stx���srr�yz�oqvo��ro�x���v|�}sys{s��-)7�W1&&������� ����� ���������� ¡¢�££�¤��£�¡ ¥¦§̈



�����������	�
��� ����������������������������������������������	���������������������������������������� ��

���!�	��������"��������������#�������$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��%

&'()*)+),-.�()/0102�/'10.3�415-�&6((-.�/''73�*41*�10-�&'()*)+1((2�'6*�'8�815'609:6*�;)<7-=1�1(3'�->&0-33-3�?41*�@�363&-+*�)3�1�+'=='A�3-A*)=-A*BC4-�81+*�*41*�*4-�=)A)3*-0D3�'E+-�)336-.�1�.)0-+*)5-�?)*4'6*�'F-0)AG�+(-10+0)*-0)1�/2�?4)+4�1�/''7�?'6(.�/-�.--=-.�*'�/-�H)A+(63)5-I�+6(*601((20-3&'A3)5-I�0-(-51A*I�1A.�0-J-+*)5-�'8�3*6.-A*3D�K'0�-5-A�1�.-LA)*)'A�'8?41*�)*�=-1A3�/2�*4-3-�->*0-=-(2�51G6-�*-0=3M�)3�1A�1/0'G1*)'A�'8�.6*29@A�*4)3I�4-�G-*3�*4-�3'(6*)'A�5-02�?0'AG9�@*D3�*06-�*41*�*4-�()/010)1A3�?4'�+6((-.�/''73�/13-.�'A�&6/()+1*)'A�.1*-3�A--.*'�/-�4-(.�1++'6A*1/(-9�:6*�*4)3�.-='A3*01*)'A�*41*�)A.)5).61(3�+1A�=-33�6&34'6(.�A'*�6A.-0=)A-�'60�81)*4�)A�('+1(�.-+)3)'AN=17)AG9�O'+1(�.-+)3)'A3.-=1A.�('+1(�0-3&'A3-3I�A'*�323*-=)+�'A-39�C4-�&0'5)A+)1(�G'5-0A=-A*)A*-05-A-.�8'(('?)AG�&'&6(10�'6*01G-�3*-==)AG�80'=�1A�)=&6(3-�*'+-A*01(),-�.-+)3)'AN=17)AG�&'?-0I�()7-�*4-�)=&6(3-�->&0-33-.�/2�;)<7-=19�P)03*I�-5-A�)8�?-�+'6(.�1((�1G0--�'A�?41*I�3&-+)L+1((2I�34'6(.�/-�.)31(('?-.I(-*D3�1+7A'?(-.G-�*41*�)*D3�6A0-1()3*)+�*'�*4)A7�*41*�?-D.�-5-0�/-�1/(-�*'�)336-�1.)0-+*)5-�3'�3&-+)L+�*41*�)*�?'6(.�(-1.�-5-02'A-�?4'�0-1.�)*�*'�).-A*)82�*4-31=-�/''73Q34'0*�'8�3&-+)L+1((2�A1=)AG�*4-�*10G-*-.�/''739�@*�=)G4*�/-1&&-1()AG�*'�*4)A7�*41*�?-�+1A�=17-�*4-�+'A*-A*3�'8�-5-02�()/0102&0-.)+*1/(-I�/6*�?-�+1A�&0'/1/(2�'A(2�1++'=&()34�*41*�5)1�/''7�/1A3I�?4)+4?-�34'6(.�+'A*)A6-�*'�'&&'3-9R-�34'6(.�1(3'�0-+'GA),-�*41*�*4-3-�.-+)3)'A3�10-�0-1((2�410.S�T5-A�*4-�+(1)=*41*�)A1++601*-�/''73�10-�='0-�1&&0'&0)1*-�8'0�?--.)AG�80'=�*4-�()/0102�)3='0-�+'=&()+1*-.�*41A�)*�3--=39�U'=)�V(10-�O1,10�=17-3�1�&-03613)5-�+13-8'0�*4-�51(6-�'8�)A1++601*-�+'A*-A*�)A�3+4''(�()/010)-3B�3*6.-A*3�34'6(.�(-10A4'?�'60�).-13�415-�+41AG-.9�W�3+4''(�()/0102I�?)*4�*-1+4-03�1A.�()/010)1A3�*'4-(&�3*6.-A*3�+'A*->*61(),-�1A.�6A.-03*1A.�*4-�(1AG61G-�1A.�-00'03I�3--=3()7-�1�G''.�&(1+-�*'�(-10A9�W8*-0�1((I�*4-3-�/''73�?)((�/-�151)(1/(-�*'�3*6.-A*318*-0�G01.61*)'A�-)*4-0�?129:6*�='3*�'8�1((I�?-�34'6(.�1+7A'?(-.G-�*41*�)A.)5).61(�()/010)1A3I�*-1+4-03I1A.�3+4''(�+'6A+)(3�?4'�1+*61((2�)A*-01+*�?)*4�3*6.-A*3�1A.�*4-)0�81=)()-3415-�1�=6+4�/-**-0�+41A+-�'8�6A.-03*1A.)AG�1A.�0-3&'A.)AG�*'�?41*�*4'3-3*6.-A*3�A--.�*41A�G'5-0A=-A*�/60-16+01*3�.'9
XYXZ[\] _̂Y]̀ abcd�efghijkldmm�nbfmdk opqr



�����������	�
��� ����������������������������������������������	���������������������������������������� ��

���!�	��������"��������������#�������$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��%

&'(�)**+,*+-).(�+(/*,0/(�-/�.,�+(1,20-3(�.').�4-5+)+-)0/�6',�.'-07�-.8/�9:�.,*;44�<=>�?>@A�BCDE@A�FGH>@IJKKG@�)0L�M00(�N+)078/�L-)+O�6-.',;.�)�P2'.�)+(4-5+)+-)0/�6',�)+(�0,.�/;-.(L�.,�Q)0)2(�.'(�4-5+)+-(/�-0�,;+�/1',,4/R�&'(O/',;4L�5(�L-/1-*4-0(L�,+�+(*4)1(LR�&'(�5,)+L�/',;4L�)4/,�+(S-(6�',6�-.1,QQ;0-1).(L�-./�-0/.+;1.-,0/R�&').�-/�',6�6(�)LL+(//�)�/-.;).-,0�4-7(�.'(�,0(�L(/1+-5(LT�+).'(+�.')0�.'(/-.;).-,0�.').�Q,/.�0().4O�P./�6-.'�'O*(+1')+2(L�*,4-.-1)4�0)++).-S(/R�U.8/�)5,+-02�/,4;.-,0�.,�)�5,+-02�*+,54(Q�.').�')L�)0�)4)+Q-02�,;.1,Q(RV'(0�.'(�Q-0-/.+O�,W�(L;1).-,0�W)-4/�.,�2-S(�/*(1-P1T�*+,S-01-)4X6-L(-0/.+;1.-,0/�)5,;.�6').�5(4,02/�Y)0L�6').�L,(/08.Z�-0�/1',,4�4-5+)+-(/�-.�-/T(Q*').-1)44OT�D[H�)0�)5+,2).-,0�,W�L;.OR�U.8/�4()S-02�.'(�L(1-/-,0XQ)7-02*,6(+�).�.'(�)**+,*+-).(�4(S(4R�V(�4()S(�)Q5-2;-.O�-0�*+,S-01-)4�2;-L(4-0(/�5(1);/(�)Q5-2;-.O�*+(/(+S(/L(1-/-,0XQ)7-02�*,6(+�).�.'(�Q,/.�4,1)4�4(S(4R�V(�/',;4L08.�L(Q)0L(\)1.-02�/*(1-P1-.O�).�.'(�*+,S-01-)4T�,+�(S(0�.'(�/1',,4�5,)+LT�4(S(4R�V'(0�)/7(L�6'(.'(+�5;+();1+)./�,+�4-5+)+-)0/�/',;4L�5(�-0�1')+2(�,W�,;+4-5+)+-(/�6(�/',;4L�)0/6(+�]4-5+)+-)0/̂T�(S(+O�.-Q(R�_)0(.�̀;W.,0_)0(.�̀;W.,0�-/�)�W,;0L(+�,W�.'(�U0/.-.;.(�W,+�a-5(+)4�b.;L-(/R�b'(�',4L/L(2+((/�-0�5;/-0(//T�(1,0,Q-1/T�)0L�-0.(+0).-,0)4�)c)-+/T�6'-1'�/'(�')//,Q(',6�Q)0)2(L�.,�.;+0�.,6)+L/�6,+7�)/�)0�9..)6)X5)/(L�(L;1).-,0)41,0/;4.)0.�)0L�1,*O�(L-.,+Rd�e')O(7)0;17fghijkgl�minkogp
qrqstuv wxrvy z{|}�~�������}����{��}� ����



�����������	���
� ��������������������������������������������������� �����!�"��� �����"#��

�����	�����$%�����#��$&�$%��&�������������������������!�������!������������ ���

'()*(+,-./010.23�4.56�.78.9.8:1;;<�=4728/==>362;923�3?0218.7@�.7�A1?17
BCD�EFDG�HI�JDKLEKM�G�NEOJGJP�OHHQRCDNI�CGR�SJHTDF�SHSUNGJ�EK�RHVD�GJDGRW�X�YZBB[�\] ŶZ_à̀a bcd�ef�ghgeijkl(m�nokl(pqj�r+,st�u�vwxyz�{|y�z}|y{~��������{}{���w�zy���}�}|�x{�y���|{|�yz���y|y�y{����ww�z�y����z�w��y~������~�x�~�{�z���w�~�z}�{��ww�z�w����y�|��w���yz�w|���wzy���{����y��|y�w��y�~���������|{|�yz�{|y��y�}����|yx��{���y��w�{���w�������yz�����|y{�����{}�{�y���y|y�}yw}�y��{�������y���|w����yxy��z���|w��~����z����{������yz��{xy��yy���|y{�y~���|w���w�����y��w���|���y��|z��z�������|{|���{z�w}y�y~����v{|�����������{�~yzy|�y~z�w}}����z�|yy������{����������w�{��|y�y���|y���������{��w������w��zw|����{�����|w����y��������z����{��y�}���z�w|y�z}{�y��y�v���{��w��wz�w�{���{��{������|{|���z���||y������w�y��w�{|w��~�������ww�z���������y��{�w|�����|w������������ww�z�y���w��y|z���w�{xy�}{�~��������{��w�����w�|y���{��ww�z�y���������ww�z��w�y������{�}�y�y�w��}{}y|��w|�|y{~y|z��w��|��y�~w�����y�|��w����z�w����y��ww�z����y��ww�z�y���w��y|�z{�~�� ¡¢��~y�����y~��w|y{~��yy~�{���w���ww�z�}���y~��w�|y£y������x�y��w����y��w|�~� 

¤¥¦§§̈§©�ª«¬�®̄ °«±�²®§³
6a.03.01



�����������	���
� ��������������������������������������������������� �����!�"��� �����"#��

�����	�����$%�����#��$&�$%��&�������������������������!�������!������������ ���

'(()*+,-.�(/0,1*�21,�2-*(�304(-4,5�30�-361217�(8,1293(0*:�30;-<530=6,30=�29�9+,�-361217�9(�2**3*9�43*39(1*>�?,�*,9<8�5(,*�0(9�304(-4,�2078,1*(00,-�;(*9*:�@(+3:�AB:�*235:�25530=�9+29�1,09�205�<93-397�;(*9*�21,�2--;(4,1,5�67�6(()*+,-.�1,092-�.,,*�205�(9+,1�*(<1;,*�(.�30;(C,>D(C,�8,(8-,�/,1,�303932--7�*),893;2-�9+29�8,(8-,�/(<-5�827�C(0,7�9(1,09�2�6(()*+,-.>�?,�35,2:�+(/,4,1:�81(4,5�9(�6,�2�+39:�/39+�*(C,8,(8-,�8-2;,5�(0�/23930=�-3*9*�9(�1,09�2�6(()*+,-.�29�(0,�8(309>?,�E23F<�-361217:�/+3;+�0(/�/,-;(C,*�21(<05�GHH�9(�IHH�<*,1*�8,1C(09+:�+2*�6,;(C,�2�8-2;,�.(1�309,12;93(0:�6130=30=�8,(8-,�62;)�9(9+,�*+(8830=�*91,,9�(0;,�2=230>J207�-(;2-�=(4,10C,09�(K;32-*�(<9*35,�(.�E23F<�/+(�21,�309,1,*9,5�30;(CC<0397�1,4392-3F293(0�+24,�8235�2�43*39�9(�9+,�-361217>�LC(0=�9+,C3*�M(3;+3�M2*+3/2=3:�GN:�/+(�/(1)*�.(1�9+,�;397�=(4,10C,09�30LC2=2*2)3:�O7(=(�P1,.,;9<1,>Q*30=�9+,�;397R*�81(=12C�=120930=�*35,�6<*30,**,*�.(1�1,=3(02-1,4392-3F293(0:�M2*+3/2=3�(8,0,5�2�*3C3-21�-361217�30�2�42;209�*9(1,*82;,�30�20�LC2=2*2)3�*+(8830=�*91,,9�30�S20<217�9+3*�7,21>L1(<05�BHT�(.�6(()*+,-4,*�29�9+,�D209(*+(�-361217�21,�(;;<83,5>D(C,�,-,C,09217�*;+((-�;+3-51,0�43*39�9+,�-361217�9(�*9<57>UP,(8-,�21,�*921930=�9(�*9(8�67�29�9+,�*+(8830=�*91,,9�(0�9+,31�/27+(C,�2.9,1�,0V(730=�9+,31�93C,�+,1,:U�M2*+3/2=3�*235�(.�9+,�D209(*+(-361217>@(+3�*235�9+29�+,�-2<0;+,5�9+,�E23F<�-361217�2*�2�*(;32-�,W8,13C,09>D<;+�-361213,*�U;20�6,�*,9�<8�207/+,1,�/39+�V<*9�6(()*+,-4,*U�3.�8,(8-,/209�309,12;93(0*:�+,�*235>XYZ[\]̂ _àbcdcaefghiijfkllmmmnodjdpiaqefnrsnojlidtl̀abcdcaefuv�bsswfghiijfkllmmmnodjdpiaqefnrsnojlidtlbsswfuv�xdayzghiijfkllmmmnodjdpiaqefnrsnojlidtlxdayzuv�fhayzswdghiijfkllmmmnodjdpiaqefnrsnojlidtlfhayzswdu

?,�S2820�{3C,*|�D<*923026-,S2820�@27�AHAG



��
���� 6a.06.01















�����������	��
�������������������������������������������� ��!����!��"����#����������������$�$����%�&$�'()*�� �������������+���,'-./�����!����0����"��1)������!��%�2������������!�#����������%�3��$������������������#����������!� ���������0��������������4��� �4����!�������#��������������%�3������������������0����4"����+���������#������������+�5)���������������� ���4���� ���� � �!�������!� �4�������!�%���������������!�!� ���!����+��������������$�����0������������ �� �����������#���0�����!�������������� ��������+�� �44������%�3��������������2������2������$�0��������#�!���'(*1����"������!�6��������������������������������������%�3���������$����!�!��������������� ������!��!#� � $��7������!�!�6�!������������������������������������������� ���0����!��� ��!�0��������$�0����4������!�!%�3����������$��!���6�!��������������!�"�����������������$����$��������!!������������������!����������!���+�������%�898:;9<�=>?�@AB9�C=?��89;=?D�������������������������������������!����0�����2������2������$���������������E� ��� ��������!���!�+�����������������������������������%F������ �44���������#�����0��!� ����!��#������������+�0�$������0����#����� ��!�����������������������������G�������� �����#�����!� �44���$�������������������!������������+���������%���������+��4������������4������������!�����HI��������2��!�������H��!�HI��������2��!�2�44��$H������� ��"��+��!���$���% �JK��L��2�����%�L��!"� ���!�������� ���+��4����������4���� �4"��!�0���� �������!��4������������ ����!������������!�+��4��������������������$�0�����+��4����������!�'('-G'('5������������K��������������2�����%�M������0�!�����0����"���!���������  �������+�����6�����������$��!����������0����������������������������!����0����"��!�� ����!�������������������N�� ���2�� ����O��������L����'('-%P�����$���% �JK��L��2��������������������� ��#����!������"��������0�����!��0�$����?898:�=>?�QAB9�C=?�D89;=?D%�8ABR8S��8D=>?T8D�����������2������2������$���+�����,U���'V��'('*/L��� ����+���W��G3��4�N�����!�X�������4��� ������,Y�#�4"���*Z��'('(/�����������2�"4�������������M������W��G3��4�N����NMP�[G*Z�N�44������,U����$�'\��'('*/

6a.07.01



����������	
������	���������	�����������������������
�����	���	������	������	
����������������� ��!!��"#$"�%&'�(�)*+,�-.'

/����
��/����
���01�2�3��4�5�����5��������67��
������89:�8;<=>8;<?�3��4�5�����7�������7
�	
���@������	����A��	
��67��
������8;<=>3��4�5�����7�������7
�	
���A��	
��6B�����8;<?>3��4�5�����7�������7
�	
���6C�D�����:�8;<9>7�������7
�	
���A��	
��E�F����8;<?�6F���:�8;<?>G"-.�HI��.'J�

���K�

�����
1�B�7�������L��	��������3��4�5����7�������M�	�
1����3��4�5����7�������@����	
����N	
	����3��4�5����B������@�	������3��4�5����7
	����7	���	���0�����
������3��4�5����H�&�+*'�H.*".�%O��PQ�'+*O��"'R�G+*-��S��.�&%'T�
�����88:�8;<UN��������=:�8;<UL����	���8V:�8;<9B�����?:�8;<9F����<W:�8;<9T�
�����U:�8;<9
X�"P�S+*�



������������	
�����
���
��������������
�����
�����
�������	
������
��������������������
��������	������������������������������ ��!! ��"#��#�����$
��%%&��'��%�%��
�%���
���%�
������(%)
��%*��
�%�������%��%������
�%������	+�
�%,�-����%�
%.
�����/%�������%����%0������%����%�
������%���"�
�����1	2��% /%��� 3�����%���%-�����%2��% /%��� 

6a.08.01



��������	��
�������	������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������	�����������������	���
���������������������	����	���������	�������������
���������������������������������� !"�����������
������������������������#������$�	��������������������������������������������������������������#���������%�����%�������& �������'�����������������������������������������������(�������������������)������	����������	�����������������������������������������)�����������������������������������������������������	������������������������������������	��������������������������������������������������
������������������������������*�������������������
��������'�+�������������������������,�����������������������-�$���		��%�����������������������������������������������������.�����������/�	�01�*�������������������������������������23�
���������������� �����!�����"���	�������4� !"5�)����$����������%�����%��	������������������	��6�������������������������������+������������7������89�	���������������6�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������:������	���������
��;�������� !"�)����%��	������	������������*���������������	�������
��������������	�����������������	����	�����	���������������������	���%���������������������������
���������������������	�����������	���������������
���������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�����.:������������
�������������������������*������	�<�"������������������	���������	��+����������������������<�'
�������+������������������0����������:��������������������������
����������	����	�������������������������	�������������������$������
�)�����	����������������������������%��������������������
������������.'�+����������������	���������������������������������������������	����������	����������
��������������	��������������������	�����	����������������������0�%�����������:��������
�����������������'�������	���������������=��
��������
������������������;��	���������*������������������������
��������������������������������������������������	�������������2�	��	��������������������������������������������������
�������������������������	������������%��������������������������
����;����1�	����������������	�������������	���	����	�������������<�,��������	����������������������	������<



��������	
��	��	������	��	�����������	��	�����	�������������������������	��	�����	����	��������	���	�������	��	����	���	�����	����������	���������	���	������������	���	���������	���	����	��	�������	����������	����	� !"#����	����	��������	���	����	���������	�����������	$�����	����%&'���	���	��������	�����	����	��	(������	����	��	����	���������	��	)���	 ���������%	"��������	��	�	���	��	����������	��	��������	������	�����	������	����	��������	�����	���������	��������	��	������%*��	
������	����������	�����	�����	����	+,%-	���	����	��	./%.	���	����	��	������	����	-0	���	����	��1��������	���������	����	�2��������	����������	��	�	������	�����%$�������	�����������	���	�������	���	��	���������%	'������	����	����	���	��	���������%�������������	�������	3���	����	����	��	���	�������	�����	��	������4	���	��	���%'�	����	��	����������	������	������	���	����	������5	���	��	��	����	����	��	������	����	��6���������	��	�	���	�����)�������	�2���������	��������	����������	7	�������	��6�	������	�	�����������	��������	�����	�������	�	�����	����	�������	���	��	���������	7	��	���	����	����	��	����	����	�������	��������	���	����%$������	�����	����	����������	���	�����	����	���	����	��	������	��������	����	������	�������������	��	����������	���	��������	���	�������%&'���	����	��	����	��	��	���	����	�����	��	���	�������	�����������&'�	���6�	����	������	����	��	��	���	�����%	'�	����	��	��	�������	���	8���	����	��%&�	����	����	��	���	������9�	�	��������	��������	���	���������%	"���	����	��	��	�����%	:���	��6�	����	������	��	���	���	������	�����	����	������	�����%*'�	�����	:���	;�����	���������	����	�����	�2���������%	<���6�	����	����	�����"��	!����	�������	��	 ��������	�������9��	�����	�����	������=��=���	���	��������	��������	����������	���	��	����	����	����	�����	���	��������% �����	��	���	����	���������	��	�	��������	���	�����	����	��	��������	����	�������=��=���;�����	!����%&(�	����	����	�����	�����������	��	����	��	���	��	�������	����	����	�6�	���%	<�	�����	������������	>	'�	��	���	������	�����	�����	������	��������%	<�	�����	��	����	��	������	���	���	�������6	�������	����	���	 �����%&(���=������������	������	��8������	�����	�������	����������%*&"��	������	��	���	������	���	���	��������	��	�������	������	��	��	������	������	����	����������	��6�	����8����	���	���������%	"���	����	�������	��	�������*	����	����	$������%



���������	
�����������������������	�������
�����	�����������������������������������������	��������������������	����������������������
����������	��������������������	�
��������������������	���������	�����������������������������	�����	�����������������	�����������	���������	���������������� !����"!�#��������$����	�������%����&��	'���������������	��
����������������������������������	����������������	�������	��������	�����������(%����������)�������
��������������������������	��*��������������*�������������������������+���������������������,�����&��	'���������	����	����������-��������.����+�-�����	����/�	
�#�����(-��������������������	��,-������	�������0������1���
���������������������������������������������2�������������������(3�����	����'��������������	����������	������
���������������������������'����,(-��	�����������������������������	������������������	��������������������������	������	�������������	�,������������2����4�	������5�������2����	�6!7���	7���������������	��������������������������������������������� !���	������	������������	
��������	�����8��	�����	������������	���������	�3��������������	��	���������5�������������������	�����������������	����������������	������������������	�������������		����������(��	������
������
������	����	
�����������������	�������	��������)���������2�	���2���9��	������������������:�)�
����)�����������������,;����<�7-��������9��	��������������������������2������/�	
�#����������������������2�	��������+��������������������������������-��������2���������������������������'���������8�<�()�����������	����������	��������������������	�������������	�����������	�������������������	�	�������������
���������������������$�	�����=�&�������	��+���������������������������.����2��������,-�	������������#��������$��������
���������������������	�������������	����������	������������������������������������()������	��������������	������	�������������	�����������	�����������>,���������������������4�����������/�	
���������	����������������������($��������4���,�����������������������������
�������������	����	��������	��(.���	��������������,��������()������2�����	������������	����	���������������	��	��	����?������	���������������������������	��������������2�>�.���������2����	���������������	���@



����������	���
�	�������	��
��������	����	������������	��
�������
���������

�
��	�	��
�����
�������������������������	�	����
�
� ����
�!������"�	�����!		
	�������
��	����	���
���	����	�����	���������	�#���
���"����



7 A . 0 1 . 0 1  

SEP 2023
CEO
REPORT



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

1 

 

 

 

NATIONAL DAY FOR TRUTH & RECONCILIATION 

Mohawk Residential School Virtual Tour with the Woodland Cultural Centre 

We worked with the Woodland Cultural Centre to deliver Indigenous-led programming for our 
community members leading up to the National Day for Truth & Reconciliation. Participants 
were taken through a virtual tour of the Mohawk Institute Residential School, accompanied by 
the emotional storytelling of 5 residential school survivors. The Woodland Cultural Centre is an 
Indigenous culture preservation centre, that serves to preserve, promote and strengthen 
Indigenous language, culture, art and history; bringing the story of the Hodinohsho:ni people of 
the Eastern Woodlands to life through innovative exhibitions and programs. A cultural interpreter 
introduced the tour and guided the participants through questions and answers. Being able to 
see the residential school, alongside survivor stories gave face and voice to the generational 
trauma created by the residential school system. 
 

There were a number of thoughtful questions after the presentation aimed at deepening our 
understanding of the complexity of issues facing Indigenous communities. One participant 
emailed after the program: "That was a very good presentation- thank you so much for hosting! 
Can you connect me with that presenter? We have done several Indigenous learning workshops 
through my workplace, but I haven’t seen that one before. I think it would be beneficial for our 
team to learn from the Woodland Centre as well." Through the provision of programs that 
support intercultural understanding, empathy, mutual respect, and understanding of historical 
issues; and inviting Indigenous speakers, elders, storytellers, authors, to the Library, we 
continue to offer opportunities to address the calls to action in the Truth & Reconciliation 
Commissions report. 
 

Film Screening: Phyllis Webstad’s Orange Shirt Day 
In partnership with the International Indigenous Speakers Bureau and the Digital Human 
Library, we offered multiple screenings of Phyllis Webstad's Video: Orange Shirt Day. In honour 
of the 10 year mark of Orange Shirt Day, Phyllis Webstad shares the Orange Shirt Day origin 
story by reliving what it was like growing up in an Indigenous community and attending a 
residential school as a third generation residential school survivor. Phyllis is the Founder and 
Ambassador of the Orange Shirt Society, and tours the country telling her story and raising 
awareness about the impacts of the residential school system. She has now published two 
books, the “Orange Shirt Story” and “Phyllis’s Orange Shirt” for younger children.  

Community members that were able to attend one of the five screenings were extremely 
engaged and appreciated the opportunity to learn more about the legacy behind Orange Shirt 
Day. The film resonated with members of the Lakeshore Book Club whose selection of the 
month was Daughters of the Deer by Danielle Daniel. The Lakeshore screening was also 
attended by newcomers to the community (participants in our English Conversation Circle) and 
provided an opportunity to learn more about Canada’s history – and created an opportunity for 
the Library to support Call to Action 93 (to include information about the history of residential 
schools to newcomers to Canada). 

 

Speak UP for diversity & inclusion 
 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

2 

 

AUTHOR, MELANIE FLORENCE, INSPIRES YOUNG WRITERS 

Short Story Contest Author Visits 
This year’s Short Story Contest judge, children’s author Melanie Florence, visited seven of 

Innisfil’s elementary schools over three days in September to promote the contest.  The school 

assemblies ranged from between 90 to 350 students at a time and included students in grades 

3 through 8; visiting over 1600 students in all. At each visit, Staff shared details and rules about 

how to enter the Short Story Contest, and information about prizes for the top fifteen stories, 

including the Seepe Walters Grand Prize of $500. Melanie Florence then shared her 

presentation on the importance of storytelling and the variety of different places we find stories. 

She shared an Indigenous creation story, as well as a trickster story, and when time allowed, 

talked about residential schools and her book “Stolen Words”.  Melanie also shared how much 

she is looking forward to reading the Contest submissions.  At the end of each presentation, 

students were able to ask questions about how to become a writer, where to get inspiration, and 

clarification about the Short Story Contest. Many students expressed interest in submitting 

stories, and teachers shared how excited and appreciative they were to have special guests 

back in their schools in person. 

 

 

 

   

Above: Melanie Florence takes questions from students sat Goodfellow Public 

School. 

 

 

Open UP opportunities to strengthen 

connection & engagement with our community 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

3 

 

 

 
 

BEST START NETWORK: BELONGING PROJECT 

How are Families in Simcoe County Coping Post-Pandemic? 
The Manager of Programming and Outreach is the Community Co-Chair of the Best Start 
Network of Simcoe County (BSN) and acts as a voice to ensure the interests of Libraries across 
the County are represented at the table. Through this work, partnerships with Empower Simcoe 
(EarlyON Child and Family Centre programming), with the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit 
(Breastfeeding Support Group and Prenatal Education Classes), and others, have been 
developed. Membership at the Network is wide-ranging, including organizations from the 
education, early learning and childcare, child welfare, health care, First Nations services, mental 
health sectors and more. The Network acts as the planning table for services for children 0-6, 
and through the County of Simcoe’s Children and Community Services department shapes 
services and programs for children and families across Simcoe County.  
 

With the COVID-19 pandemic severely limiting the access to services and supports for the early 
years and staff who work with children 0-6 and their families, the question of ‘how are children 
and families across the County doing?’ emerged as a constant theme during the BSN 
committee meetings. It was clear that life in and out of a pandemic created conditions that were 
changing the wellbeing of children and families. A priority for the BSN in 2022 and 2023 has 
been to regather the network and take stock of the state of those working in and receiving 
services from member agencies.  
 
The BSN identified a striking relationship between the Network’s goal to better understand the 
wellbeing of Simcoe County’s families and children and a core tenet of Ontario’s Pedagogy for 
the Early Years (found in How Does Learning Happen?) -- “Belonging: cultivating authentic 
relationships and connections.” 
 

To explore the values and ideas of “belonging”, three initiatives were generated:  
1. A workforce study of the Early Learning and Childcare sector in Simcoe County focusing 

on whether Educators feel a sense of belonging, what belonging means to them, and 
how workplaces might approach fostering belonging. 

2. A call to a sacred fire, a land-based Ceremony listening to the heartbeat of mother earth 
- stories of belonging in Anishnawbe perspective. In this gathering Dr Jaque Lavallee 
and Dr Hopi Martin shared wise stories relating to belonging and the early years. (This 
took place on September 16th) 

3. A project to explore Belonging with children and families in Simcoe County, led by Dr 
Ellen Brown. This 10-month project allowed staff in member agencies to collect stories 
and artifacts to display in an exhibit at the BSN Belonging Collection event in 
September.  

  

Build UP our reputation as a trusted  

community asset 

https://simcoecountycoalition.ca/best-start/#:~:text=The%20Best%20Start%20Network%20of,broad%20range%20of%20community%20perspectives.
https://simcoecountycoalition.ca/best-start/#:~:text=The%20Best%20Start%20Network%20of,broad%20range%20of%20community%20perspectives.
https://files.ontario.ca/edu-how-does-learning-happen-en-2021-03-23.pdf
https://www.oise.utoronto.ca/about/news/ceremony-academy-indigenous-elder-residence-doctoral-graduate-reflects-their-educational
https://edgeofthebush.ca/about/
https://yorkspace.library.yorku.ca/items/8a365e6d-1e63-4afa-b77a-04a0b87541f8
https://yorkspace.library.yorku.ca/items/8a365e6d-1e63-4afa-b77a-04a0b87541f8


7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

4 

The Belonging Project 
 
The Library participated in collecting community information from our customers. Staff 
connected with families who use the Library spaces and attend Library programs to ask “what 
belonging means to them and how the Library can better serve their families.” The 
conversations and survey responses were overwhelmingly positive, with families sharing that 
they felt welcome, accepted, supported and safe in Library spaces.  
 

 “To me, belonging means being part of a welcoming and supportive 

community, who accepts me for who I am and provides me with opportunities 

to learn and grow. The Innisfil ideaLAB & Library is an amazing place where I 

always feel welcomed and supported. I am encouraged to try new books and 

learn about new pieces of technology. The staff is always friendly and kind.” 

 

- Belonging Project Survey Respondent  

 

In September the Best Start Network hosted the Belonging Project event, co-chaired by the 
Library’s Manager of Programming and Outreach. The event was part conference and part 
exhibition, allowing network members to view, share, and interact with the Belonging Projects 
that were collected by the member organizations of the Best Start Network, including Empower 
Simcoe, Community Action Program for Children (CAPC), the Simcoe County District School 
Board, Georgian Bay Native Friendship Centre, Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, and more. 
These projects were compiled through surveys, interactions, and conversations with families 
using these services over the last 10 months around the concept of Belonging.  
 
The event was attended by our Children’s Librarian and began with a discussion on nurturing 

belonging in our work by Lorrie McGee Baird, executive director of pedagogy with Compass 

Early Learning and Care in Peterborough, and Anne Marie Coughlin, educational director at 
London Bridge Child Care Services in London, ON. They shared how reflective practice and 
cultivating communities with inquiry can help organizations serve families with young children 
and foster a sense of belonging. They talked about how the concept of belonging fits into how 
learning happens, and how important it is to share these ideas with different community 
partners, and how we can all work together to help our communities.   
 

Following this, renowned child psychologist, Dr. Jean Clinton, presented an inspiring keynote on 
Thinking about Belonging. She discussed how our brains are a social organ and how humans 
are wired to connect, and how our behavior and communication are affected by this. Key 
learnings included excellent resources to help inform our programming and interactions with 
children in our spaces. This event provided an opportunity to network and connect with other 
organizations that serve our community.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.redleafpress.org/cw_contributorinfo.aspx?ContribID=190309&Name=Lorrie+McGee+Baird
https://www.redleafpress.org/cw_contributorinfo.aspx?ContribID=190308&Name=Anne+Marie+Coughlin
https://drjeanclinton.com/


7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

5 

MAKERFEST RETURNS 

Over 500 People Explore New Ideas, Inspiring Exhibitors  

This year's 9th annual MakerFEST was held at the Lakeshore Branch on Saturday, September 

16th. The event was an outstanding success, highlighting the incredible talents of our 

community's makers and truly exemplifying the essence of creativity and innovation while 

offering an interactive and engaging experience for attendees of all ages. With a record number 

of exhibitors, MakerFEST provided a diverse and dynamic showcase of projects, from high-tech 

inventions, such as cutting-edge virtual reality technology poised to augment the driving industry 

and driver training experience, to handcrafted artistry, and sewing enthusiasts. With over 500 

people in attendance the event demonstrated the strong appeal and the connection it has 

forged within our community. Families were delighted by all the hands-on activities available 

and children were particularly excited by the appearance of iconic characters, Mario and Luigi 

and members of the 501st Garrison. The success of MakerFEST depends on a planning and 

organizing team of Library Staff members from across every department, student volunteers, 

and community exhibitors. 

 

With so much to do and explore, from hands-on workshops to inspiring demonstrations, 

MakerFEST showcased not only the creativity and innovation that thrives within our community, 

but highlighted Library spaces and programs including the HackLAB, ThinkLAB, and MediaLAB.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

Raise UP the Library’s identity as an  

innovative hub 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

6 

 

 
  
  
  
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

"Congrats on such a successful 

MakerFEST. I loved it.  

It was fun to see how excited the kids 

were! I now have 2 more Christmas 

gifts and my daughter's fish is on the 

ice hut. Please convey my 

compliments to your associates 

involved in such a successful event" 
 

 

“As a senior it was a great 

opportunity to share my 

passion and craft with 

younger generations, and the 

event inspired a wonderful 

sense of community.” 

"My son is hard of hearing and is 

currently learning ASL. This 

puzzle (from ideaSHOP) will be 

such a great addition to our 

resources and really help our 

family with this huge learning 

curve!" 

“Wow, this event 

has been amazing! 

My kids are having 

so much fun and 

I’m getting to see 

all sorts of exciting 

things” 
 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

7 

Making Connections 

To promote MakerFEST at the various branches, Staff 
sent button making machines and supplies to 
Cookstown and Stroud. Many children enjoyed colouring 
their own button, and punching it together with Staff 
assistance.  
 
“One of our Cookstown patrons, Azra (age 7), wanted to 
make a button to “give to someone”. While making the 
button, Azra asked me my favourite colour (purple), and 
when we finished punching it, she gave it to me as a gift 
- and said it was a picture of her and me at the Library. 
Azra and her family immigrated in 2022 and are frequent 
faces at Cookstown. Her sister studies at the University 
in Ottawa, and told me this August how much they love 
the Library in Cookstown. They had heard stories about 
how great Libraries were in North America, and our 
library has exceeded all of her expectations!” 

 

A SPACE FOR COMMUNITY 

Rotary Harvest Dinner 

The Innisfil Rotary Club held its 2nd Annual Harvest Dinner at the Lakeshore Branch. As long-
time community partners, the Rotary Club of Innisfil has recognized the importance of the 
Library as a community hub and event space. The event included a seated dinner featuring 
locally sourced ingredients, local musicians. and a live and silent auction. 

The Rotary Harvest Dinner was a night of celebration, unity, and giving and the Library was 
happy to be the venue for this event and to support the Rotary Club of Innisfil in their 
commitment to community service and fundraising.

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

8 

Mother/Daughter Empowerment Awards  

The Lakeshore Branch was used as the venue for the Mother Daughter Empower Conference & 

Awards, organized by local residents. This was the first time that the Library was rented out as a 

space to host a large scale event and conference by external parties, using multiple spaces 

within the facility. The event featured panelists and workshops, along with over 20 female 

vendors and finally wrapping up with an awards ceremony for young girls.  

Staff who assisted with the event noted that recipients were recognized for making a difference 

in their communities, acknowledging their achievements in various fields, from self-care to 

sports and the environment. The event's success was inspiring, filling the building with energy 

and positivity while creating a strong sense of community and mentorship. Overall, using the 

Library as a venue for this type of event has sparked new conversations with staff about new 

ways our facilities can be used by the public, and the need to review and revise polices to 

enable different types of rentals and activities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Light UP pathways to personal &  

professional growth 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

9 

OUR PROGRAMMERS GO ABOVE AND BEYOND 

A Story from Storytime 

The Library provides our community with multiple options to support early literacy with several 

drop-in storytimes offered at each branch and outdoors. Some families attend regularly and 

build strong bonds with each other and Library Staff. These storytimes were attended by an 

average of 20 people each week, and even on days when the program started with just one or 

two families, they would usually end with over 10 people participating.  These programs are so 

valuable for the community that we continue to run them whether there is one child or twenty. 

 “I wished to reach out and compliment Miss Laura and the other young lady 

that was at story time today [Miss Kaitlin] My daughter was the only child to 

come to story time and they went OVER THE TOP for her and made her feel 

so very special. She's been having a little bit of a rough go the last few weeks 

and this was just the ticket to make her feel special. Thank you so much, we 

appreciated it more than we can ever say.” - Kate 

Indoor storytimes are 30 minutes long and include crafts aligning with the storytime theme 
where little ones could explore their creativity with cutting, pasting, colouring, and stickers. For 
example, after our National Truth and Reconciliation storytime featuring Indigenous authors and 
stories like “We Learn From the Sun” and “Stolen Words”; children were invited to colour their 
own Orange Shirt design and write down what makes them special on an orange paper link that 
was added to a paper chain displayed in the Library. 

  



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

10 

FLY, BUTTERFLIES, FLY 

End of Butterfly Rearing Season 
 

Our 2023 Butterfly Rearing Program ran from June until September this year, and our Butterfly 
Coordinator Summer Student interacted with between 80 and 180 Library customers each week 
at the indoor Butterfly stations at both the Lakeshore and Cookstown branches, as well as an 
average of 25 people at each of the 8 Butterfly Releases in August and September.  This 
program is a great way for the community to learn about the Library’s pollinator gardens as well 
as the Monarch Butterfly population and their importance to our ecosystem as a 
pollinator.  Even with the decrease of the Monarch Butterfly population province-wide this year, 
there was lots of excitement at each of the Butterfly Releases that were announced over our 
social media channels as well as discussed at Library programs. 
 

At the Butterfly stations, there was a suggestion box to name the caterpillars, microscopes and 
educational slides of Monarch butterflies, colouring pages and stickers, as well as laser-cut 
wooden butterflies that were coloured and named to show how many Butterflies had been 
released throughout the summer. There was also a chalkboard display of facts about Monarch 
Butterflies where Library customers could learn something new each week. The Butterfly 
Coordinator also collaborated with both Children’s and Adult Programming, bringing butterfly 
crafts and trivia to programs like Little Critters and Earthlings Crew, as well as an outreach visit 
to Lakeside Retirement. Many families would come in each week to check on the progress of 
the caterpillars, and kept an eye on our social media pages so that they wouldn’t miss a 
Butterfly Release. 

 
 

  



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

11 

EXPLORING OUR STORIES & LOCAL HISTORY 
Sociable Seniors 

A collaboration between the Collections and Programming Staff created a fun opportunity for a 
group of enthusiastic seniors to explore the Library’s Local History collections, both digital and 
physical, on September 13. Using the large screen in the Board Room, participants were given 
a virtual tour of the Our Stories Innisfil historical database, including its significant photo 
collection, oral history selection, and heritage-based maps, as well as an overview of the unique 
and important relationship that the Library has with the Innisfil Historical Society to create and 
maintain this database.  
 

Following the digital presentation, the group moved into the Local History room where the 
Special Collections Librarian introduced them to the various publications available concerning 
Innisfil’s history as well as to the microform collection and how to use it. Participants had many 
burning questions about the history of certain areas of Innisfil and how they came to be named, 
and the maps were of particular interest for one participant planning a scavenger hunt.  
 

An emotional connection was also made when the group mentioned a friend of theirs who would 
have loved the presentation. To the participants’ delight, staff were able to show them an oral 
history interview conducted in 2015 with their friend’s husband that was available on Our Stories 
Innisfil. The next day, the same friend came into the Library to ask about the videos and was 
delighted she could so easily share them with her family and grandchildren since her husband 
had passed away shortly after they were recorded. This was a wonderful example of the 
importance of capturing community memory and the extraordinarily vital and privileged role that 
the Library plays in preserving it for future generations. 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Screenshot from 

OurStoriesInnisfil.ca 

 

 

http://ourstoriesinnisfil.ca/islandora/object/ourstories%253A31323
http://ourstoriesinnisfil.ca/islandora/object/ourstories%253A31323


7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

12 

AN EVENING WITH VINCENT LAM 

Simcoe Reads Author Talk 

Attendees came from around Innisfil and beyond for an engaging and thoughtful talk by Dr. 
Vincent Lam. Board member and our Simcoe Reads Champion, Dr. Raj Grover introduced Dr. 
Lam. Vincent read carefully selected passages of his book, On the Ravine, to give attendees a 
sense of the novel's main characters, and the challenges that surround them. With this as a 
base of understanding, we launched into a lively selection of audience questions. Some of the 
questions were more for "Dr." Vincent Lam, rather than the author, but he embraced all 
questions and brought the conversation back to the novel. The range of questions about the 
opioid epidemic itself exposes a deep need in the community to understand and come to terms 
with this pressing societal issue. The questions which focused on the craft of writing gave 
Vincent opportunities to share his writing philosophy, and how he makes choices as an author. 
 

 
 

We made our set of assistive listening devices available, with a novel setup: the larger 
broadcasting device was set up to receive input from the stage's mic system. This was handy 
because not only did Vincent have a mic, but the audience Q&A participants also spoke into a 
mic, so the assistive listening device users could have all portions of the event amplified. The 
feedback from this was very positive, with those who used the system being very thankful that it 
was available. After the main talk portion, Vincent remained to sign books and meet with 
individual attendees. It was a very lovely end to a thoughtful and engaging night. 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

13 

GET TO KNOW YOUR NEIGHBOUR 

Living Library Concludes 

We had an amazing final Living Library of the series! The Living Books on September 26th were 
Mayor Lynn Dollin and Peer Support Specialist at CMHA Simcoe County Victoria Carrick. Once 
again, the Living Books, Mayor Dollin and Victoria were seated at individual tables while 
participants took turns asking them questions about their 'Title' in a one-one-one meeting. 
Whenever it was time to change meetings, it was challenging to get people to 'switch' because 
they were so engrossed in such an interesting conversation. In fact, one participant and Victoria 
ended their session in a big hug. It's these moments that illustrate the power of human 
connection and what a significant impact this kind of program can have on people.  
 
While participants were waiting their turn to chat with the Living Books, they were mingling with 
one another, enjoying the refreshments and conversation. It was nice to see that two of our 
town councillors were in attendance to support their mayor as well as Victoria's parents to 
support their daughter. The councillors shared positive comments reinforcing the importance of 
the Library to the community, including: “the library is the pillar of our community, and the 
information hub” and “this library just offers so much. There's always something going on.”  
 

One participant thanked us profusely saying “this was perfect. I'm so glad I came - I don't want 
this to end.” 
 

 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

14 

COMMUNITY-LED CHAMPIONS 

Celebrating Friday Morning Song Circle  

A heartwarming celebration occurred at the 
Lakeshore Branch as the community-led Friday 
Morning Song Circle returned indoors for the winter 
months. Over 70 participants, including friends, 
Council Members, and residents gathered to honour 
Patty McLaughlin. Friend and event organizer, Patti 
Bentley, emphasized McLaughlin's well-deserved 
recognition for her musical contributions across the 
Town. Certificates were presented on behalf of 
Council and MP Brassard, along with a laser 
engraved wooden plaque presented by a Library 
staff member. Patty’s passion for music plays an 
instrumental role, as she welcomes musicians of all 
skill levels weekly while fostering inclusivity and the 
shared love of music.  

 

 

 

 

  



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

15 

STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Understanding Truth & Reconciliation 

Library Staff participated in training from the Woodland Cultural Centre, aimed at giving Staff a 

deeper understanding of the Truth & Reconciliation Report, its Calls to Action and the historical 

context around which these important documents were developed. 

STAFFING UPDATES 

Employee 
Recognition  
Employment milestones 
of eight Library Staff 
members were 
recognized at the 
September staff meeting. 
Heartfelt congratulations 
and thanks were 
extended to Alan 
Groombridge, Robert 
Baxter, Kate Zubczyk, 
Brooke Gardhouse, and 
Melissa Harris for 10 
years of service and to 
Sarah Poland, Laura 
Payne Jeffery, and 
Jennifer Miyasaki for 5 
years of service.  
  
 

  



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

16 

APPENDIX A: 

Level UP! Communications Insights 

Media Outreach & Social Media Response 

DATE 
PUBLISHED 

NEWS 
OUTLET 

TITLE 

Sept. 2, 2023 Innisfil Today Mother Daughter Empower conference seeking nominations 
- Innisfil News (innisfiltoday.ca)  

Sept. 3, 2023 Innisfil Today 
 
Making Change says Trillium grant 'really kept us afloat' 

Sept. 5, 2023 Innisfil Today 
 
Town opens cooling stations as temperatures soar 

Sept. 6, 2023 Innisfil Today 
 
Rotary sets the table with return of Harvest Dinner 

Sept. 8, 2023 Simcoe.com 
'There's something for everyone to discover': Innisfil IdeaLAB 
and Library's Makerfest sure to ignite imaginations 

Sept. 12, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Events marking Day of Truth and Reconciliation coming to 
library 

Sept. 13, 2023 Innisfil Today 
 
MakerFEST returning to Innisfil library on Saturday 

Sept. 16, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Artists, entrepreneurs, engineers excite at 9th annual 
MakerFEST 

Sept. 20, 2023 Barrie 360 
Girls Learn About Confidence, Body Positivity and who Runs 
the World During Mother Daughter Empower Conference in 
Simcoe County 

Sept. 22, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Town raises flag for National Day for Truth and 
Reconciliation  

https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/mother-daughter-empower-conference-seeking-nominations-7485827
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/mother-daughter-empower-conference-seeking-nominations-7485827
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/grant-recognition-ceremony-7492326
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/town-opens-cooling-stations-as-temperatures-soar-7498530
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/rotary-sets-the-table-with-return-of-harvest-dinner-7494795
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/theres-something-for-everyone-to-discover-innisfil-idealab-and-librarys-makerfest-sure-to-ignite-imaginations/article_e95d79aa-716d-50b3-a9a7-9ff5ab43304d.html
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/theres-something-for-everyone-to-discover-innisfil-idealab-and-librarys-makerfest-sure-to-ignite-imaginations/article_e95d79aa-716d-50b3-a9a7-9ff5ab43304d.html
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/events-marking-day-of-truth-and-reconciliation-coming-to-library-7528504
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/events-marking-day-of-truth-and-reconciliation-coming-to-library-7528504
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/makerfest-returning-to-innisfil-library-on-saturday-7536334
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/local-artists-entrepreneurs-engineers-excite-and-delight-at-9th-annual-makerfest-7558035
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/local-artists-entrepreneurs-engineers-excite-and-delight-at-9th-annual-makerfest-7558035
https://barrie360.com/mother-daughter-empower-conference/
https://barrie360.com/mother-daughter-empower-conference/
https://barrie360.com/mother-daughter-empower-conference/
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/town-raises-flag-for-national-day-for-truth-and-reconciliation-7587719
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/town-raises-flag-for-national-day-for-truth-and-reconciliation-7587719


7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

17 

Sept. 23, 2023 Simcoe.com Bradford West Gwillimbury and Innisfil employers invited to 
conversations on workplace mental health 

Sept. 23, 2023 Innisfil Today 
 
Author and physician to speak at Innisfil library 

Sept. 23, 2023 Simcoe.com 
Acclaimed Canadian author Vincent Lam will chat about 

his newest novel 'On the Ravine' at Innisfil library  

Sept. 24, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Local businesses invited to sessions about employee mental 
health 

Sept. 25, 2023 Simcoe.com 
National Day for Truth and Reconciliation events in Barrie, 
Orillia and Simcoe County 

Sept. 26, 2023 Innisfil Today 
Girls 'inspired, empowered' at Mother Daughter Conference  

Sept. 29, 2023 Simcoe.com 
5 Books to Explore for National Day of Truth and 
Reconciliation  

 

  

https://www.simcoe.com/business/bradford-west-gwillimbury-and-innisfil-employers-invited-to-conversations-on-workplace-mental-health/article_e4f7c599-6f2e-5ea0-aec3-a78f1bcf69b2.html
https://www.simcoe.com/business/bradford-west-gwillimbury-and-innisfil-employers-invited-to-conversations-on-workplace-mental-health/article_e4f7c599-6f2e-5ea0-aec3-a78f1bcf69b2.html
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/author-and-physician-to-speak-at-innisfil-library-7573433
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/acclaimed-canadian-author-vincent-lam-will-chat-about-his-newest-novel-on-the-ravine-at/article_904990a9-75e3-5fa0-9eeb-4081c424e2b7.html
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/acclaimed-canadian-author-vincent-lam-will-chat-about-his-newest-novel-on-the-ravine-at/article_904990a9-75e3-5fa0-9eeb-4081c424e2b7.html
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/local-businesses-invited-to-sessions-about-employee-mental-health-7586741
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/local-businesses-invited-to-sessions-about-employee-mental-health-7586741
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/national-day-for-truth-and-reconciliation-events-in-barrie-orillia-and-simcoe-county/article_9db37e26-567d-5b76-a16f-1ffc0e4b2be1.html
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/national-day-for-truth-and-reconciliation-events-in-barrie-orillia-and-simcoe-county/article_9db37e26-567d-5b76-a16f-1ffc0e4b2be1.html
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/girls-inspired-empowered-at-mother-daughter-conference-7592775
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/books/5-books-to-explore-for-national-day-of-truth-and-reconciliation/article_2c542b5e-0437-5da7-bc81-449ef9698123.html
https://www.simcoe.com/things-to-do/books/5-books-to-explore-for-national-day-of-truth-and-reconciliation/article_2c542b5e-0437-5da7-bc81-449ef9698123.html


7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

18 

Facebook Insights (Sept 1 to 30, 2023) 

FOLLOWERS # OF 
POSTS 

TOTAL ENGAGEMENT TOTAL IMPRESSIONS 

3,727 (Followers) 
3,210 Page Likes 

59 during 
this period 

969 engagements (826 
reactions, 88 shares, 55 
comments) 

Posts earned 38.3K impressions 
over this period (number of 
times our posts have entered a 
person's screen) 

Top Organic Post (based on reach): 
Date, Sept. 4, 2023 3.4K Reach 

  

X (Twitter Insights) (Sept 1 to 30, 2023) 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

19 

FOLLOWERS # OF TWEETS TOTAL ENGAGEMENT TWEET IMPRESSIONS 

1,526 
  

51 during this 
period 

30 engagements (17 likes, 6 
retweets, 6 quote tweets, 1 
reply)  

5.5K impressions over this 
period (number of times 
users saw our tweets) 

Top Organic Post (based on reach): 
Top Tweet earned 63 impressions 

  

 

  



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

20 

Instagram Insights (Sept 1 to 30, 2023) 

FOLLOWER
S 

# OF POSTS TOTAL LIKES & 
REACH 

TOTAL COMMENTS 

2,056 56 during this 
period 

2477 accounts 
reached. 

945 likes.  

8 comments in total on 
content posted during this 
period 

Top Post (based on engagement): Sept. 18, 2023 923 Reach 

 

Top Reel (based on engagement): Sept. 12, 2023  1,033 Reach 



7a.01.01 CEO’s Report for September 2023 

21 

 

  



7b.01.01 
Municipal Council Report  

 

 

September 13, 2023 Council Meeting 

● Watch the meeting. 

● Two members of the community participated in open forum discussing the Limerick 

Street Lighting and 25th Sideroad/Big Bay Point Roundabout 

● Emily McIntosh, Executive Director - Contact Community Services (serving the South 

Simcoe area) presented their annual update - watch the video: Update on Services. 

○ Highlights include: 897 households referred to services, 831 employment search 

supports 

○ Contact supports employers and job seekers, newcomers, housing services, 

senior wellness programs and volunteer programs. 

● Committee vacancies exist for the Electoral Engagement Advisory Committee and 

recruitment for new members began. Read the report. 

● Updated guidelines for the disbursement of Council Discretionary Funds was adopted. 

Read the report. The application process was re-opened. 

● The agenda included correspondence re: Municipal Housing Pledges and Targets, 

Strong Mayor Powers and Building Faster Fund from the ministry of municipal affairs 

and housing. 

 

September 20, 2023 Special Council Meeting 

● Special Council meeting was held for education and training and for a public planning 

meeting. 

 

September 26, 2023 Council Meeting 

● Watch the meeting. 

● Mayor Dollin opened the meeting acknowledging the importance of Land 

Acknowledgement Statements, and their role in reconciliation 

● Open forum had community members speaking on Big Bay Point parking, strong mayor 

powers, a zoning by-law amendment 

● Council received a presentation from Brian Shelley of United Way of Simcoe-Muskoka 

detailing the needs of the community and how United Way helps to address some of 

these critical needs.  

○ Identified a new strategic plan to build capacity, increase awareness, funding and 

partnership opportunities and advocacy and education  

○ Identified community needs: living wage in Innisfil is $20.70/hour, 40% of renters 

spend more than 30% of household income on shelter, 1 in 6 families experience 

food insecurity, less than 43% youth report good or excellent mental health 

○ 2980 Innisfil residents live in low-income households, 722 individuals are 

unhoused across Simcoe County (58% in Barrie/South SImcoe), 20% of youth in 

our region “Seriously considered suicide” in the past year 

○ United Way asked Town of Innisfil staff to consider including an employee giving 

campaign 

 

https://www.youtube.com/live/vWGi7Z8Fdm4?si=cSU6wfPMKHSalcvV
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=eGA0stB-kQ8
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/BD2BB4C4D10746F5B34DBE8C5CDF2E2F-Committee%20Vacancies.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/662DD28F1C124DB9B04E4DE88902A09D-Council%20Discretionary%20Grant%20Program%20Guidelines.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/9BF6C138B09A47C0ABFFA37F7F8BA896-2023.08.22%20MMAH%20re%20Municipal%20Housing%20Pledges%20Targe.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/live/l7Zl7dLJboM?si=h-6HSjEo7IMHkMN9


7b.01.01 
Municipal Council Report  

 

● CAO Jerschow shared an educational presentation on strong mayor powers 

○ Review the slides. 

○ Innisfil has been assigned a target of creating 6,300 new homes by 2031 (or 788 

homes per year for the next eight years) 

○ Strong Mayor Powers in Part VI.1 fall into three broad categories: – Legislative 

Powers (i.e., power to veto by-laws, the power to require Council to consider a 

matter/by-law) – Administrative Powers (i.e., powers to appoint a CAO, set the 

organizational structure of the municipality, to establish committees, appoint 

chairs, etc.) – Financial Powers (i.e., duty and responsibility to present a budget 

to Council, and to approve the budget)   

○ Mayor to determine how to respond to the province’s request for a commitment 

to the housing target by October 15, 2023   

○ If that commitment is provided, Part VI.1 of the Act (the Strong Mayor Powers) 

could apply to Innisfil as of October 31, 2023   

○ Any delegation of strong mayor powers would take place after this date  By-laws, 

policies, practices and processes will be reviewed by staff and may have to be 

updated to reflect the existence of these powers  

○ Council had numerous questions and discussions surrounding this topic. 

 

 

 

News from the Community 

● Run for Innisfil benefitting RVH deemed 'immense success' 

● Girls 'inspired, empowered' at Mother Daughter Conference 

● Gallery: Seasonal market falls into the season 

● Town raises flag for National Day for Truth and Reconciliation 

● Pharmacy owners donate $1M to RVH's Keep Life Wild campaign 

● Roundabout near Friday Harbour hits red light at council 

● South Simcoe police taking part in Law Enforcement Torch Run 

● Cookstown properties to undergo review for heritage impact 

● Mayor's Business Breakfast serves up food for thought 

● 'Experience the thrill': Gussapolooza chugging into Cookstown 

● Innisfil native brings passion for environment to new TVO show 

● Innisfil Community Foundation donates $10K to Barrie shelter 

● Making Change says Trillium grant 'really kept us afloat' 

● United Way Simcoe Muskoka has $100,000 in funding available for youth-led community 

projects 

 

Metroland Layoffs 

● Metroland to cease print publication of dozens of community newspapers across Ontario 

○ As a result of Metroland seeking bankruptcy protection, Innisfil will no longer 

have a print newspaper. 

 

https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/0CE9B6CB34D4413B88CCBD3C46FDF7E5-2023.09.27%20Strong%20Mayor%20Powers%20Overview.pdf
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/run-for-innisfil-benefitting-rvh-deemed-immense-success-7592765
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/girls-inspired-empowered-at-mother-daughter-conference-7592775
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/seasonal-market-falls-into-the-season-7591852
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/town-raises-flag-for-national-day-for-truth-and-reconciliation-7587719
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/pharmacy-owners-donate-1m-to-rvhs-keep-life-wild-campaign-7580500
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/roundabout-near-friday-harbour-hits-red-light-at-council-7561251
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/south-simcoe-police-taking-part-in-law-enforcement-torch-run-7548960
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/cookstown-properties-to-undergo-review-for-heritage-impact-7557577
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/mayors-business-breakfast-serves-up-food-for-thought-7543422
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/experience-the-thrill-gussapolooza-chugging-into-cookstown-7534552
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/jobs-of-the-future/innisfil-native-brings-passion-for-environment-to-new-tvo-show-7529346
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/innisfil-community-foundation-donates-10k-to-barrie-shelter-7514002
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/grant-recognition-ceremony-7492326
https://www.simcoe.com/life/united-way-simcoe-muskoka-has-100-000-in-funding-available-for-youth-led-community-projects/article_4f587350-fffd-5c78-a036-76cf8ee76621.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/united-way-simcoe-muskoka-has-100-000-in-funding-available-for-youth-led-community-projects/article_4f587350-fffd-5c78-a036-76cf8ee76621.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/ontario/metroland-to-cease-print-publication-of-dozens-of-community-newspapers-across-ontario/article_bc51faf9-d812-5a86-b9d1-14ddaebe7785.html


7b.01.01 
Municipal Council Report  

News from the County:  

● Health funding aimed at taking financial burden from municipalities 

● Bradford park renamed in honour of slain Const. Devon Northrup 

● Simcoe County councillors tell staff to keep 2024 budget increase below 5 per cent 

● Chippewas of Georgina Island, Georgina, Bradford West Gwillimbury leaders unite in 

effort to save Lake Simcoe 

● Simcoe County celebrates World Tourism Day with relaunch of 'Spark' mentorships and 

grants program 

● Constables Russell and Northrup to be honoured at 4 upcoming events 

 

● Bradford West Gwillimbury Public Library 

○ ‘We will adjust our system ... to make sure that doesn’t happen again’ 

○ Mayor issues statement in wake of 'disruptive' council meeting 

○ Council meeting shut down after library workers clamour to be heard 

○ Protest: Closure of library is 'disturbing' for local students 

○ 'Totally untrue': Bradford mayor refutes library union claims 

○ McDowell steps down from library board without explanation 

○ Arbitration won't solve Bradford library labour dispute: union 

○ Numerous letters to the editors have been shared by community 

 

News from the Province 

● Barrie-Innisfil MPP tapped for high-profile cabinet post 

● Ontario legislature resumes after Greenbelt about-face, minister resignations 

● Ford shuffles cabinet in wake of two minister resignations 

 

● Strong Mayor Powers 

○ ‘We can't afford to do it’: New Tecumseth unable to commit to Ontario housing 

target due to water capacity limits 

 

Upper-tier Municipality Review  

● Simcoe County warden unperturbed as Ontario’s new housing minister pauses facilitator 

plan 

 

 

https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/health-funding-aimed-at-taking-financial-burden-from-municipalities-7572904
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/bradford-park-renamed-in-honour-of-slain-const-devon-northrup-7565826
https://www.simcoe.com/news/council/simcoe-county-councillors-tell-staff-to-keep-2024-budget-increase-below-5-per-cent/article_be65ccf2-a0f3-5807-a5a4-849ee5bb8858.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/chippewas-of-georgina-island-georgina-bradford-west-gwillimbury-leaders-unite-in-effort-to-save-lake/article_4eed0b35-1187-50c6-b4ce-2ae2e7cd9fcd.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/chippewas-of-georgina-island-georgina-bradford-west-gwillimbury-leaders-unite-in-effort-to-save-lake/article_4eed0b35-1187-50c6-b4ce-2ae2e7cd9fcd.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/simcoe-county-celebrates-world-tourism-day-with-relaunch-of-spark-mentorships-and-grants-program/article_aefc9cd1-e942-57db-af1a-fad6e59f16db.html
https://www.simcoe.com/life/simcoe-county-celebrates-world-tourism-day-with-relaunch-of-spark-mentorships-and-grants-program/article_aefc9cd1-e942-57db-af1a-fad6e59f16db.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/constables-russell-and-northrup-to-be-honoured-at-4-upcoming-events/article_d1714d7a-bc6d-561c-94a5-90b9a300ea22.html
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/we-will-adjust-our-system-to-make-sure-that-doesnt-happen-again-7580542
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/mayor-issues-statement-in-wake-of-disruptive-council-meeting-7577982
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/council-meeting-shut-down-after-library-workers-clamour-to-be-heard-7571915
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/protest-closure-of-library-is-disturbing-for-local-students-7554041
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/totally-untrue-bradford-mayor-refutes-library-union-claims-7510169
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/mcdowell-steps-down-from-library-board-without-explanation-7486185
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/local-news/arbitration-wont-solve-bradford-library-labour-dispute-union-7469968
https://www.bradfordtoday.ca/search?q=library&Tag=173187&DaysFrom=0&DaysTo=&Order=date
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/local-news/barrie-innisfil-mpp-tapped-for-high-profile-cabinet-post-7590072
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/ontario-news/ontario-legislature-resumes-after-greenbelt-about-face-minister-resignations-7591659
https://www.innisfiltoday.ca/ontario-news/ford-shuffles-cabinet-in-wake-of-two-minister-resignations-7584211
https://www.simcoe.com/news/we-cant-afford-to-do-it-new-tecumseth-unable-to-commit-to-ontario-housing-target/article_ae6ecc4c-e646-529c-b60b-31526e91fbe8.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/we-cant-afford-to-do-it-new-tecumseth-unable-to-commit-to-ontario-housing-target/article_ae6ecc4c-e646-529c-b60b-31526e91fbe8.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/simcoe-county-warden-unperturbed-as-ontario-s-new-housing-minister-pauses-facilitator-plan/article_8b3c720b-2880-5f3f-8344-49277f632a1e.html
https://www.simcoe.com/news/simcoe-county-warden-unperturbed-as-ontario-s-new-housing-minister-pauses-facilitator-plan/article_8b3c720b-2880-5f3f-8344-49277f632a1e.html


JHSC Meeting Agenda

MEETING DATE: Thursday, August 17, 2023

TIME: 1:00PM

LOCATION: Ops Meeting Room 2 and Teams

CO-CHAIRS: Management Co-Chair – Eric Chudzinski; Worker Co-Chair Richard Rivet

MINUTES: Jennifer Miyasaki

ATTENDANCE Nick Ayres, Eric Chudzinski, Jennifer Miyasaki, Richard Rivet, Jennifer Sheremeto,
Paul Tomaszewski, Sierra Warren

REGRETS Ken Schuyler, Kristi Williams

Item Agenda Item Lead Item Details ACTION & NOTES

1. Call Meeting
to Order

Co-Chair - Time – opened - Meeting started at  1:02 p.m.

2. Approval of
Previous
Minutes

Co-Chair
2023.07.20 JHSC
Meeting Agenda
Minutes Draft.docx
(Desktop, Web,
Mobile)

- Richard R. motioned to approve the minutes of the
previous meeting.

- Seconded by Jen. S.
- All in favour; Motion Carried.

3. JHSC
members

Co-Chair
02.09.23 JHSC
Members February
2023 (Desktop, Web,
Mobile)

- No changes

4.
Workplace
Inspections

WHIMIS
LOTO

Co-Chair Roundtable
discussions

Richard – No issues at Operation; Salt dome had a few
deficiencies that were rectified; Lefroy Arena – need to
confirm ladder ownership for stickers; H& S Board needs
updating;  other minor deficiencies noted at Lefroy;
Stroud H & S board needs updating (EC has done this)

Jennifer M – All branches were inspected; minor
deficiencies found and immediately corrected.  Previous
open deficiencies are now closed

Nick – IBP will be done next week

Paul – No issues at Fleet; noted more shop equipment
is broken and has been a challenge to get repaired; will
do IRC with Nick next week

7e.01.01



Page 2 of 3

Jen S. – No issues at Knock School; noted garbage left
outside after an event; Rizzardo has some items that
can be closed – locked café door to kitchen; fire
extinguishers are due to be recharged/inspected – need
to determine responsibility (independent contractor?).

Ecdev – have access to key now – janitor closet is
messy- need to organize space; need to clean up H&S
board; will put together a kit of all updated info for Board

Churchill – few things noted; tables blocking storage
doors; close this item; turned heat off; close item; fridge
issue noted (condensation).

Town Square – a lot of items cleaned up; tidied up
Zamboni area; noted HVAC room – skid of anti slip mats
on the pump – blocking emergency exit; trip/fall hazard
at steps near band stand

Kristi – Absent (Town Hall was inspected July 26 – no
deficiencies to report)

Sierra -  No updates

Eric – Centennial: updated H&S board and restocked
first aid kit; updated H&S Board at Stroud arena board

Updated inspection schedule – no further changes
required.

5. SOP’s
Corporate
Policies

Co-Chair Any updates for
discussion?

- Updated H & S policy statement – only minor
administrative changes

6. Workplace
Incidents &
Accidents

Co-Chair
Report on last
month’s accidents
(July 2023)

- 9 Incidents to report for July: 3 first aid; 3 lost time 2
equipment 1 vehicle
(2 lost time in camps; 1 lost time in Library; 2 first
aid in parks 1 first aid in road ; 2 equipment
incidents; 1 vehicle incident)

7. Budget &
Training

Co-Chair

1. Budget (status
update)

2. Member
Certifications

1. No changes

2.No changes from last month

8.
JHSC
Other

Business
All

Members

1. Workplace
Inspection
Schedule (any
feedback or
changes required)

2. Critical Injury (Bee
Sting) – August
11, 2023

1. Reviewed and updated

2. Employee was stung on neck, while performing a
site inspection; shortly after, they felt unwell and
experienced loss of consciousness for a brief period,
prior to receiving medical attention.; employee has
recovered. No internal JHSC investigation will be
done.



Page 3 of 3

3. Ministry of Labour
Consultations for
proposed
changes to OHSA
a. Heat Stress
b. Air Quality

4. Mold Remediation
at Stroud arena
(update)

5. Updated H&S
Policy statement
for posting

3. JHSC have opportunity to provide feedback on
proposed changes to Heat stress and Air Quality
legislation.

4. Clearance air sampling post mould remediation at the
Stroud Arena is scheduled for August 18. Results will
be posted once received.

5. Provided copy of the updated, signed H& S policy
statement. To be posted on H&S Boards

9. ACTION
ITEMS

Follow up

Co-Chair
Review of Action
items from July 20,
2023 meeting
minutes.

1.ACTION: EC/RR Will review storage of wings and
assess hazard/risk to staff; EC shared photos and
discussed risks of how they are currently stored.
Request from manufacturer a written confirmation
on storage practices for review by committee – Eric
to follow up on this item – Action still open

2.ACTION: Members who require help with inspections
– please identify locations so Jen S. can plan to assist
in August. – Completed – this action can be closed

3.ACTION:  SOP for chipper at IBP– need to determine
if modifications meet code for safety – EC followed up
– issues have been rectified and training is being done
on use. – this action can be closed

10. Close
Meeting

Co-Chair Time enter of meeting
closed.

Meeting closed at 1:52 p.m.



INNISFIL PUBLIC LIBRARY STAFF REPORT 

STAFF REPORT NO. LIB-10-2023 

DATE: October 16, 2023 

TO: Innisfil Public Library Board 

FROM: Erin Scuccimarri, CEO 

SUBJECT: Mileage Reimbursement Rate Change 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. THAT Staff Report LIB-10-2023 Mileage Reimbursement Rate Change dated October 16,
2023 be received as information; and

2. That the Library Board accepts the amended mileage reimbursement rate of $0.65 per
kilometre, and the carpooling reimbursement rate of $0.70 per kilometre, and that these
rates be effective as of October 1, 2023.

BACKGROUND: 

The Library’s current Mileage Policy and Carpooling Policy requires the CEO to review the mileage 
reimbursement rates from time to time and to make recommendations on any changes to the 
Board. The rates at this time are $0.60 per kilometre for individuals using their personal vehicles 
for Library-related business; $0.65 per kilometre when carpooling for Library-related business.  
These rates were approved with the updated Mileage Policy at the May 15, 2023 Board meeting, 
Motion #2023.47. 

ANALYSIS/CONSIDERATION: 

Past practice, as per approved policy, has been to establish the Library’s mileage reimbursement 
rates according to the rates set by the Town of Innisfil.  The Town’s Financial Services Department 
recently re-evaluated the rate, and as a result, effective October 1, 2023, the Town’s mileage 
reimbursement rate increased to $0.65 per kilometre.    

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES: 

1. The Library Board could choose not to adopt the mileage rate as presented or change the

date that it would come into effect.

8a.01.01



STAFF REPORT #LIB-10-2023 – Mileage Reimbursement Rate Change 
 

 

2 
 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

 
Additional costs based on the increased rate would be managed within the current operating 
budget. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Although there are minimal financial implications, this is a reasonable rate based on the Library’s 
policy of setting reimbursement rates in line with the Town and our municipal comparators. 
 
 
 



(Unaudited) Financial Statements

The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil

Public Library Board

December 31, 2021

9a.01.01



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
December 31, 2021 

CONTENTS

Page

Financial Statements
Independent Practitioner's Review Engagement Report 1
Statement of Financial Position 2
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 3
Statement of Cash Flows 4
Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets(Debt) 5
Notes to the Financial Statements 6
Schedule 1 - Tangible Capital Assets 14 - 15



placeholder for audit report

1



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Financial assets 
Cash $ 125,089 $ 221,267
Receivable from the Town (Note 4) 1,647,918 1,547,044

 1,773,007 1,768,311

Liabilities 
Payables and accruals 141,070 155,202
Employee benefits payable (Note 3) 142,378 125,607
Deferred revenue 34,438 26,624
Interest on debt 22,503 25,151
Long term debt owed to the Town (Note 4) 1,130,500 1,263,500

 1,470,889 1,596,084

Net financial assets 302,118 172,227

Non-financial assets 
Prepaids 22,973 21,865
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 1) 13,936,487 14,342,292

 13,959,460 14,364,157

Accumulated surplus (Note 6) $ 14,261,578 $ 14,536,384

On behalf of the Board: 

Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
2



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
Year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Budget
(Note 7)

2021 2020

Revenue 
Contributions from Town (Note 4) $ 3,395,610 $ 3,395,610 $ 3,438,330
Contributions from Town reserve fund (Note 4) 645,946 256,266 480,392
Grants - Provincial 45,921 78,847 64,239
Grants - Federal - 26,357 4,544
User fees, fines and miscellaneous 67,300 26,338 33,119
Donations - 9,899 14,639
Other recoveries from Town (Note 4) 130,077 127,596 122,572

 4,284,854 3,920,913 4,157,835

Expenditures 
Salaries and benefits 2,943,373 2,950,577 2,823,025
Materials and supplies 564,105 358,465 364,819
Amortization 640,399 640,399 673,204
Contracted services 248,156 150,584 120,187
Donated assets - 10,000 -
Interest 148,421 56,172 62,703
Rents and financial 30,781 30,075 30,282

 4,575,235 4,196,272 4,074,220

Net revenue (expenditures) $ (290,381) (275,359) 83,615
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets - 553 45

Annual surplus (deficit) (290,381) (274,806) 83,660

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 14,536,384 14,452,724

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 14,261,578 $ 14,536,384

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Operating activities 
Annual Surplus (deficit) $ (274,806) $ 83,660
Amortization 640,399 673,204
Loss on sale of tangible capital assets (553) (45)

365,040 756,819

Changes in non-cash items
Increase in employee benefits payable 16,771 24,380
Increase in prepaids (1,108) (3,070)
Increase in due from the Town (100,874) (200,371)
Increase (decrease) in payables and accruals (14,132) 16,355
Increase in deferred revenue 7,814 2,234
Repayment of interest owing on long term debt (2,648) (2,647)

Cash provided by operating activities 270,863 593,700

Capital activities 
Purchase of tangible capital assets (234,594) (378,912)
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets 553 45

Cash used in capital activities (234,041) (378,867)

Financing activities 
Decrease in long term debt owed to the Town (133,000) (133,000)

Net change in cash (96,178) 81,833
Cash, beginning of year 221,267 139,434

Cash, end of year $ 125,089 $ 221,267

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets (Net Debt)
Year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

 

Annual surplus (deficit) $ (274,806) $ 83,660

Purchase of tangible capital assets (234,594) (378,912)

Amortization of tangible capital assets 640,399 673,204

Increase in prepaids (1,108) (3,070)

Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets 553 45

Loss on sale of tangible capital assets (553) (45)

 404,697 291,222

Increase in net assets 129,891 374,882

Net assets (debt), beginning of year 172,227 (202,655)

Net assets, end of year $ 302,118 $ 172,227

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
5



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Purpose of the Library Board 

The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil - Public Library Board (the Board) provides library services to
residents of the Town of Innisfil and residents of other municipalities who have contracted with the Board
for services.

The Board is a local board of The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil (the "Town") deemed to be a public
library board established under the Public Libraries Act.  The Board is not subject to income taxes under
Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act (Canada).

b. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the Board are prepared by and are the responsibility of Management in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for local governments, as
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Board are as
follows:

c. Reporting entity 

The financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue, expenditures and accumulated surplus of
the Board.

d. Basis of accounting 

The basis of accounting followed in the financial statement presentation includes revenues in the period
in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the revenues and expenditures in the
period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred or transfers are due.

e. Tangible capital assets 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The costs of the tangible capital
assets are capitalized as an individual or pooled asset when within the given thresholds. Assets which
are below the thresholds established by the Board are expensed as incurred. Amortization is calculated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives for all classes except land; land is considered to
have an infinite life without amortization. In the year of acquisition a half year of amortization is taken on
the new asset.

Major Group Useful Life

Land Infinite
Land Improvements 10 - 40 Years
Buildings 15 - 50 Years
Leasehold Improvements 25 Years

6



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Significant Accounting Policies continued 

e. Tangible capital assets continued 

Major Group Useful Life

Books and Equipment 4 - 50 Years
Vehicle 8 - 20 Years

f. Contributions of tangible capital assets 

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt
and also as revenue.

g. Employee benefits 

The Board accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans as the employees render the services
necessary to earn employee future benefits. The Board has adopted the following valuation methods and
assumptions:

i. Actuarial cost method:

Accrued benefit obligations are computed using the projected benefit method prorated on service, as
defined in PSAB 3250 and PSAB 3255. The objective under this method is to expense each member's
benefit under the plan taking into consideration projections of benefit costs to and during retirement.
Under this method an equal portion of total estimated future benefit is attributed to each year of service.

ii. Funding policy:

The non-pension post-retirement benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Board funds on a
cash basis as benefits are paid. No assets have been formally segregated and restricted to provide the
non-pension post-retirement benefits.

iii. Accounting policies:

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized on a linear basis over the expected average remaining service
life ("EARSL") of members expected to receive benefits under the plan, with amortization commencing in
the period following the determination of the gain or loss.

7



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Significant Accounting Policies continued 

h. Pension plan 

The Board is an employer member of the Ontario Municipal Employees' Retirement System ("OMERS"),
which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Board of Directors, representing plan
members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the pension plan, including
investment of the assets and administration of the benefits.  The Board has adopted defined contribution
plan accounting principles for this plan because insufficient information is available to apply defined
benefit plan accounting principles. The Board records as pension expense the current service cost,
amortization of past service costs and interest costs related to the future employer contributions to the
plan for past employee service.

i. Reserves for future expenditures 

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board, are set aside in reserves for future operating and capital
expenditures. Transfers from the reserves are made when the expenditures are incurred for the
specified purpose (Note 6).

j. Revenue Recognition 

Grants and government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in
which the events giving rise to the transfers occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility
criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made, except to the extent that
the transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are
recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is
recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulated liabilities are settled. User fees, fines and
other revenue are recognized when the services are performed or goods are delivered and there is
reasonable assurance of collection.

k. Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s historical experience, best knowledge of
current events and actions that the Library may undertake in the future. Significant accounting estimates
include employee future benefits payable and useful life of tangible capital assets. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

8



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

2. Pension Agreements 

The Board makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund ("OMERS"), which is a
multi-employer pension plan, on behalf of full-time members of staff. The plan is a defined benefit plan, which
specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the length of service
and rates of pay. The Board of Directors, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for
overseeing the management of the pension plan, including investment of the assets and administration of the
benefits. OMERS provides pension services to more than 541,000 active and retired members and
approximately 1,000 employers.

Each year an independent actuary determines the funding status of OMERS Primary Pension Plan (the "Plan")
by comparing the actuarial value of invested assets to the estimated present value of all pension benefits that
members have earned to date. The most recent actuarial valuation of the Plan was conducted at December 31,
2021. The results of this valuation disclosed total actuarial liabilities of $120,796 million in respect of benefits
accrued for service with actuarial assets at that date of $117,665 million indicating an actuarial deficit of $3,131
million. Because OMERS is a multi-employer plan, any pension plan surpluses or deficits are a joint
responsibility of Ontario municipal organizations and their employees. As a result, the Board does not
recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit. Contributions made by the Board to OMERS for
2021 were $229,419 (2020 - $185,882).

3. Employee benefits payable 

The Board provides certain employee benefits, which dental, health, and other will require funding in future
periods:

2021 2020

Vacation and time banks $ 70,770 $ 61,390
Dental, health, and other 71,608 64,217

 $ 142,378 $ 125,607

The Board pays certain life insurance, health, dental and other benefits on behalf of its retired employees.

Information about the Board's defined benefit plan is as follows:

2021 2020

Accrued benefit liability, January 1 $ 64,217 $ 57,742
Expense for the period 7,391 6,475

Accrued benefit liability, December 31 71,608 64,217
Unamortized actuarial loss 40,760 56,181

Accumulated benefit obligation, December 31 $ 112,368 $ 120,398

9



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

3. Employee benefits payable continued 

Retirement health care and dental benefits:
The Board provides health care and dental benefits to certain employee groups after retirement until members
reach 65 years of age. The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan as at December 31, 2021 are based
on an actuarial valuation prepared by an independent firm. The previous full valuation was prepared effective
December 31, 2018 and results from that valuation have been extrapolated to December 31, 2021.

Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Obligations: 
The Board is a Schedule 1 employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act and, as such, the Board
insures all claims by its injured workers under the Act. No liabilities for claims by its injured workers under the
Act are included in the Board’s financial statements.

The main financial actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows:

Discount rate for calculation of net benefit costs 2.40% per annum (2020 - 3.00%)
Discount rate to determine accrued benefit obligation for disclosure

(at end of period)
3.00% per annum (2020 - 2.40%)

Dental cost trend rates 4.00% per annum (2020 - 4.00%)
Extended health care trend rates 6.00% in 2020, decreasing to an

ultimate rate of 4.00% over 10
years

Inflation rates 2.00% per annum (2020 - 2.00%)

4. Transactions with the Town 

The Board had the following transactions with the Town:

2021 2020

With the Corporation of the Town of Innisfil, valued at cost: 
Municipal funding $ 3,395,610 $ 3,438,330
Contributions from Town reserve funds 256,266 480,392
Cookstown Library recovery from Town 29,000 29,000
Stroud Library rental expense (26,300) (26,300)
Library CEO/Director recovery from Town 101,077 90,723
Other (2,481) 2,849

Balance outstanding at December 31: 
Long term debt owed to Town $ (1,130,500) $ (1,263,500)
Due from the Town $ 1,647,918 $ 1,547,044

10



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

4. Transactions with the Town continued 

The long term debt amount owed to the Town relates to debentures issued by the Town and approved by Town
by-law. In February 2010, the Town entered into a debenture in the amount of $2,660,000 on the Board's behalf
for the construction of the Cookstown Library. The debenture is due in 2030, bears interest at 4.78%, and is
repayable semi-annually in principal payments of $66,500. The $3,518,183 that is due to the Town is
unsecured, non-interest bearing with no fixed terms of repayment. 

Principal repayments for the next five years are as follows:

2022 $ 133,000
2023 133,000
2024 133,000
2025 133,000
2026 133,000
Thereafter 465,500

Total $ 1,130,500

5. Segment disclosure note 

Since the Library's operations are not considered diverse and operations are managed as one department, no
segment disclosure has been provided.

6. Accumulated surplus 

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surpluses and reserves as follows:

2021 2020

Reserves set aside by Council 
Computer replacement reserve $ 459,127 $ 349,314
Donation reserve 74,218 57,607

Total Reserves 533,345 406,921

Surpluses 
Investment in tangible capital assets 13,936,487 14,342,292
Operating surplus 25,066 107,334
Capital surplus 991,291 1,032,705

Unfunded: 
Employee benefits payable (71,608) (64,217)
Interest on debt (22,503) (25,151)

11



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

6. Accumulated surplus continued 

2021 2020

Due to Municipality (1,130,500) (1,263,500)

Total surpluses 13,728,233 14,129,463

Accumulated Surplus $ 14,261,578 $ 14,536,384

7. Budget amounts 

The operating budget approved by Council on December 9, 2020 for 2021 is reflected on the statement of
operations. The budgets established for capital investment in tangible capital assets are on a project oriented
basis, the costs of which may be carried over one or more years, and therefore, may not be comparable with
the current year’s actual amounts. The approved budget figures have been adjusted for the purposes of the
financial statements to comply with PSAB reporting requirements as follows:

Council approved budget: 
Operating budget 

Budgeted opening balance $ -
Capital budget 

Capital Budget carried forward from prior years $ (1,032,706)

Budgeted opening balance (1,032,706)

Add: 
Budgeted debt principal repayments 432,525
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 1,009,252

 1,441,777

Less: 
Budgeted transfer from reserves (59,053)
Budgeted amortization expense (640,399)

 (699,452)

Budget annual deficit on statement of operations $ (290,381)

12



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

8. Significant event 

The global pandemic, as a result of COVID-19, has disrupted economic activities and supply chains. As the
impacts of COVID-19 continue there could be further impacts on the Board, its community, employees,
suppliers and third-party business associates, that could impact the Board's assets and future ability to deliver
services. The Board's ability to continue to provide library services to the public and to employ related staff, will
depend on the legislative mandates from the various levels of government. The duration and impact of COVID-
19 is unknown at this time and it is not possible to reliably estimate the impact that the length and severity of
these developments will have on the financial results and condition of the Board in future periods.

13



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil 
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Schedule 1 - Tangible Capital Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Land
Land

Improvements Buildings
Leasehold

Improvements
Books and
Equipment

Work in
Progress 2021

Cost 
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,294,696 $ 672,390 $ 11,091,513 $ 63,756 $ 6,178,434 $ 4,177 $ 19,304,966

Add: Additions during the year - - - - 234,594 30,130 264,724

Less: Disposals during the year - - - - (499,788) - (499,788)

Contributions, transfers and other* - - - - - (30,130) (30,130)

Balance, end of year 1,294,696 672,390 11,091,513 63,756 5,913,240 4,177 19,039,772

Accumulated amortization 
Balance, beginning of year - 329,856 1,527,763 34,427 3,070,628 - 4,962,674

Add: Amortization during the year - 30,202 148,046 2,550 459,601 - 640,399

Less: Amortization on disposal - - - - (499,788) - (499,788)

Balance, end of year - 360,058 1,675,809 36,977 3,030,441 - 5,103,285

Net book value, end of year $ 1,294,696 $ 312,332 $ 9,415,704 $ 26,779 $ 2,882,799 $ 4,177 $ 13,936,487

*The Work in Progress (WIP) amount is representative of costs transferred from WIP into additions.

14



The Corporation of the Town of Innisfil 
Public Library Board
(Unaudited) Schedule 1 - Tangible Capital Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Land
Land

Improvements Buildings
Leasehold

Improvements
Books and
Equipment

Work in
Progress 2020 

Cost 
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,294,696 $ 635,504 $ 11,004,015 $ 63,756 $ 6,159,694 $ 17,233 $ 19,174,898

Add: Additions during the year - 36,886 87,498 - 267,584 151,311 543,279

Less: Disposals during the year - - - - (248,844) - (248,844)

Contributions, transfers and other* - - - - - (164,367) (164,367)

Balance, end of year 1,294,696 672,390 11,091,513 63,756 6,178,434 4,177 19,304,966

Accumulated amortization 
Balance, beginning of year - 297,538 1,380,380 31,878 2,828,518 - 4,538,314

Add: Amortization during the year - 32,318 147,383 2,550 490,953 - 673,204

Less: Amortization on disposal - - - - (248,844) - (248,844)

Balance, end of year - 329,856 1,527,763 34,428 3,070,627 - 4,962,674

Net book value, end of year $ 1,294,696 $ 342,534 $ 9,563,750 $ 29,328 $ 3,107,807 $ 4,177 $ 14,342,292

*The Work in Progress (WIP) amount is representative of costs transferred from WIP into additions.

15



(Unaudited) Financial Statements 

The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

December 31, 2022 

9b.01.01 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 
Public Library Board 
December31,2022 

CONTENTS 

Financial Statements 

Independent Practitioner's Review Engagement Report 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets(Debt) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Schedule 1 - Tangible Capital Assets 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 
6 

13 -14 



Independent Practitioner's Review Engagement Report 

To the members of The Corporation of the Town of lnntsftl Public Library Board 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of The Corporation of the Town of lnnlsfil 
Public Library Board that comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, the 
statements of operations and accumulated surplus, change in net debt and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Manaaement's Responsibility for the Ffnanctal Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Practitioner's Responslblllty 
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements based on our review. 
We conducted our review in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review 
engagements, which require us to comply with relevant ethical requirements. 

A review of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for review 
engagements is a limited assurance engagement. The practitioner performs procedures, primarily consisting 
of making inquiries of management and others within the entity, as appropriate, and applying analytical 
procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained. 

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less in extent than, and vary in nature from, those 
performed in an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on these financial statements. 

Basis for Qualified Conclusion 
In common with many not-for-profit organizations, The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil Public Library 
Board derives revenue from fines and donations, the completeness of which is not susceptible to us 
obtaining evidence we considered necessary for the purpose of the review. Accordingly, the evidence 
obtained of these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of The Corporation of the 
Town of lnnisfil Public Library Board. Therefore, we were not able to determine whether any adjustments 
might be necessary to fines and donations revenue, annual surplus, and cash flows from operations for the 
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, financial assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and 
accumulated surplus as at January 1 and December 31 for both the 2022 and 2021 years. Our review

conclusion on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 was modified accordingly 
because of the possible effects of this limitation in scope. 

Q.uallfled Conclusion 
Based on our review, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 
Conclusion paragraph, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the financial 
statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Corporation of 
the Town of lnnisfil Public Library Soard as at December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
Barrie, Ontario 
REPORTOATE 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2022 and 2021 

2022 2021 

Financial assets 
Cash $ 90,782 $ 125,089 
Receivable from the Town (Note 4) 1

1
671a798 1,647,918 

1a762
1
580 \773

1
007 

Liabilities 
Payables and accruals 194,134 141,070 
Employee benefits payable {Note 3) 139,994 142,378 
Deferred revenue 2,687 34,438 
Interest on debt 19,868 22,503 
Long term debt owed to the Town (Note 4) 997

1
500 1,130,500 

1
1
354

1
183 \470,889 

Net financial assets 408
1
397 302,118 

Non-financial assets 
Prepaids 22,512 22,973 
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 1) 13.617.321 13,936

1
487 

13.639.833 13,959
1
460 

Accumulated surplus (Note 6) $ 14
1
048.230 $ 14,261,578 

On behalf of the Board: 

Director Director 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 
Year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

Budget 202 • � 2021 

Revenue 
Contributions from Town (Note 4) 
Contributions from Town reserve fund (Note 4) 
Grants - Provincial 
Grants - Federal 
User fees, fines and miscellaneous 
Donations 
Other recoveries from Town (Note 4) 

Expenditures 
Salaries and benefits 
Materials and supplies 
Amortization 
Contracted services 
Donated assets 
Interest 
Rents and financial 

� Net revenue (expenditures) ('v Gain on sale of tangible capital assets � 

Annual surplus (deficit) � 

Accumulated surplus, beglnni(lg�e:r

Accumulated surplus, e�ar 

(Note 7) 
----- ------� ... ____ _

-�-
$ 3,553,005 $ 3��5 $ 

640,315 ��.144 
45,921 { �78,717 

V 34,99s
69,3.0o"'\ 45,698 

V 1,e19 

f >-":,. 3,028,591
"-V s3G,oe1 

� � 636,864 

26,759 

3,995,137 

2,886,293 
440,371 
636,864 
155,041 , �y 242,894 

� 
142,790 
30,781 

10,000 
49,826 
30

1
092 

✓ 

$ 

4.618.001 

(280,460) 

(280,460) 

$ 

4.208,487 

(213,350) 
2 

(213,348) 

14.261.578 

14,048,230 $ 

3,395,610 
256,266 

78,847 
26,357 
26,338 

9,899 
127,596 

3,920,913 

2,950,577 
358,465 
640,399 
150,584 

10,000 
56,172 
30,075 

4,196,272 

(275,359) 
553 

(274,806) 

14.536,384 

14
1
261,578 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Statement of Cash Flows 
Year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

2022 2021 

Operating activities 
Annual Surplus {deficit) $ (213,348) $ {274,806) 
Amortization 636,864 640,399 
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets (21 (553l 

423,514 365,040 

Changes in non-cash items 
Increase in employee benefits payable (2,384) 16,771 
Increase in prepaids 461 (1,108) 
Increase in due from the Town (23,880) {100,874) 
Increase (decrease) in payables and accruals 53,066 (14,132) 
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (31,751) 7,814 
Repayment of interest owing on long term debt (2

1
635} {2,648} 

Cash provided by operating activities 416
1
391 270,863 

Capital activities 
Purchase of tangible capital assets (317,698) {234,594) 
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets 553 

Cash used in capital activities (3171
698} {234,041} 

Financing activities 
Decrease in long term debt owed to the Town (133

1
000} {133

1
oooi

Net change in cash (34,307) (96,178) 
Cash, beginning of year 125

1
089 221,267 

Cash, end of year $ 90z782 $ 125,089 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
4 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets (Net Debt) 
Year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 

� 2021 2021

Annual surplus (deficit) 
Purchase of tangible capital assets 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 
Decrease in prepaids 
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets 
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets 

Increase in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

______,.,.� 
$ .e�> $ (274,806) 

'"ti�) (234,594) 

r'�,a64 
V 463 

640,399 
(1,108) 

0 553 

� _______ ( __ 2) ----'-(5_5 __3)

& 
§ 

()� 
$ 

319,627 404 697 

106,279 129,891 

302,118 172,227 

408.397 ..,$ _.;,;30
:;,;;;
2

.,;
, 1

.,;,;
18

:;.. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 

1. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Purpose of the Library Board

The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil - Public Library Board (the Board) provides library services to
residents of the Town of lnnisfil and residents of other municipalities who have contracted with the Board
for services.

The Board is a local board of The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil (the "Town") deemed to be a public
library board established under the Public Libraries Act. The Board is not subject to income taxes under
Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act (Canada).

b. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Board are prepared by and are the responsibility of Management in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for local governments, as
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB") of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Board are as
follows:

c. Reporting entity

The financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue, expenditures and accumulated surplus of
the Board.

d. Basis of accounting

The basis of accounting followed in the financial statement presentation includes revenues in the period
in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the revenues and expenditures in the
period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred or transfers are due.

e. Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The costs of the tangible capital
assets are capitalized as an individual or pooled asset when within the given thresholds in accordance
with the Town's TCA policy. Assets which are below the thresholds established by the Board are
expensed as incurred. Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
for all classes except land; land is considered to have an infinite life without amortization. In the year of
acquisition a half year of amortization is taken on the new asset.

Major Group 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings 

Leasehold Improvements 

Useful Life 

Infinite 

10- 40 Years 

15- 50 Years 

25 Years 

6 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 

1. Significant Accounting Policies continued

e. Tangible capital assets continued

Major Group Useful Life

f. 

g. 

Books and Equipment 
Vehicle 

4- 50 Years
8-20 Years

Contributions of tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are record,i �ir fair value at the date of receipt
and also as revenue. ,

Employee benefits J 

The Board accrues its obligations under employee 
�

/plans as the employees render the services 
necessary to earn employee future benefits. The dJ,as adopted the following valuation methods and 
assumptions: 

i. Actuarial cost method:

Accrued benefit obligations are computeq using the projected benefit method prorated on service, as 
defined in PSAB 3250 and PSAB 3�5. fhe objective under this method is to expense each member's 
benefit under the plan taking into colitjderation projections of benefit costs to and during retirement. 
Under this method an equal porti�f • 6tal estimated future benefit is attributed to each year of service. 

ii. Funding policy: � 

The non-pension post-r�ent benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Board funds on a 
cash basis as benefit�e_J>aid. No assets have been formally segregated and restricted to provide the 
non-pension post-

�
"!efit benefits. 

iii. Accounting �es:

in nd losses are amortized on a linear basis over the expected average remaining service 
") of members expected to receive benefits under the plan, with amortization commencing in 
lowing the determination of the gain or loss. 

7 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 

1. Significant Accounting Policies continued

h. Pension plan

The Board is an employer member of the Ontario Municipal Employees' Retirement System ("OMERS"),
which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Board of Directors, representing plan
members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the pension plan, including
investment of the assets and administration of the benefits. The Board has adopted defined contribution
plan accounting principles for this plan because insufficient information is available to apply defined
benefit plan accounting principles. The Board records as pension expense the current service cost,
amortization of past service costs and interest costs related to the future employer contributions to the
plan for past employee service.

i. Reserves for future expenditures

Certain amounts. as approved by the Board, are set aside in reserves for future operating and capital
expenditures. Transfers from the reserves are made when the expenditures are incurred for the
specified purpose (Note 6).

j. Revenue Recognition

Grants and government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenue in the period in
which the events giving rise to the transfers occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility
criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made, except to the extent that
the transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability. Transfers are
recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue is
recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulated liabilities are settled. User fees, fines and
other revenue are recognized when the services are performed or goods are delivered and there is
reasonable assurance of collection.

k. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management's historical experience, best knowledge of
current events and actions that the Library may undertake in the future. Significant accounting estimates
include employee future benefits payable and useful life of tangible capital assets. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

,. 

8 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 

2. Pension Agreements

3. 

The Board makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement FundJ" �RS"), which is a
multi-employer pension plan, on behalf of full-time members of staff. The plan is a defl,f�enefit plan, which
specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees bas o�.the length of service
and rates of pay. The Board of Directors, representing plan members and o rs, is responsible for
overseeing the management of the pension plan, including investment of the set� nd administration of the
benefits. OMERS provides pension services to more than 559,000 acti nd retired members and
approximately 1,000 employers.

�
Each year an independent actuary determines the funding status of o�(R�mary Pension Plan (the "Plan")
by comparing the actuarial value of invested assets to the estimate

�
r�t value of all pension benefits that

members have earned to date. The most recent actuarial valuation" he Plan was conducted at December 31, 
2022. The results of this valuation disclosed total actuarial liab

�
1 • • s ,$130,306 million in respect of benefits 

accrued for service with actuarial assets at that date of $123,62 milljon indicating an actuarial deficit of $6,678 
million. Because OMERS is a multi-employer plan, any�n t0n plan surpluses or deficits are a joint 
responsibility of Ontario municipal organizations and tht[r � loyees. As a result, the Board does not 
recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or_J��Contributions made by the Board to OMERS for
2022 were $191,165 (2021 -$229,419). 

� 
Employee benefits payable � 

The Board provides certain employee benefits, 82h dental, health, and other will require funding in future 
periods: ✓ 

� 
Vacatlon and time banks ,.f;;,; 
Dental, health, and other �

"'�. 

$ 

$ 

2022 

62,084 $ 
77,910 

2021 

70,770 
71 608 

139,994 _$ __ 1_4_2
'-
,3 _78

;.. 

The Board pays certain ����nee, health, dental and other benefits on behalf of its retired employees.

Information about the� defined benefit plan is as follows: 

� 
AccruedGnetit liability, January 1 

Ex· �"for the period 

benefit liability, December 31 
........... u., ... mortized actuarial loss 

cumulated benefit obligation, December 31 

$ 

$ 

2022 
71,608 $ 

6,302 

2021 

64,217 
7 391 

77,910 71,608 
(23,&53) ___ 4_0 ... 

1
1 .... so .... 

54,257 ..,$ __ 1_1_2_,3_68_ 

9 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 

3. Employee benefits payable continued

Retirement health care and dental benefits: 
The Board provides health care and dental benefits to certain employee groups after retirement until members 
reach 65 years of age. The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan as at December 31, 2022 are based 
on an actuarial valuation prepared by an independent firm. The date of the most recent valuation was as of 
December 31, 2022. 

Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Obligations: 
The Board is a Schedule 1 employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act and, as such, the Board 
insures all claims by its injured workers under the Act. No liabilities for claims by its injured workers under the 
Act are included in the Board's financial statements. 

The main financial actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows: 

Discount rate for calculation of net benefit costs 

Discount rate to determine accrued benefit obligation for disclosure 
(at end of period) 

Dental cost trend rates 

Extended health care trend rates 

1 nflation rates 

4. Transactions with the Town

The Board had the following transactions with the Town: 

With the Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil, valued at cost: 

Municipal funding 

Contributions from Town reserve funds 

Cookstown Library recovery from Town 

Stroud Library rental expense 

Library CEO/Director recovery from Town 

Other 

Balance outstanding at December 31: 

Long term debt owed to Town 

Due from the Town 

3.00% per annum (2021 - 2.40%) 

5.10% per annum (2021 - 3.00%) 

4.00% per annum (2021 - 4.00%) 

6.00% in 2021, decreasing to an 
ultimate rate of 4.00% over 10 
years 

2.00% per annum (2021 - 2.00%) 

2022 2021 

$ 3,553,005 

248,144 

29,000 

(26,300) 

(2,241) 

$ 3,395,610 
256,266 

29,000 

(26.300) 

101,077 

(2,481) 

$ (997,500) $(1,130,500) 

$ 1,671,796 $ 1,647,918 

10 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 

4. Transactions with the Town continued 0 
The long term debt amount owed to the Town relates to debentures issued by the Town �n1J�proved by Town 
by-law. In February 2010 , the Town entered into a debenture in the amount of $2,660,000�•the Board's behalf
for the construction of the Cookstown Library. The debenture is due in 2030, bearti.i[it�rest at 4. 78%, and is
repayable semi-annually in principal payments of $66,500 . The $3,518,183 th�� due to the Town is
unsecured, non-interest bearing with no fixed terms of repayment. 

u � 
Principal repayments for the next five years are as follows: 

o 
2023 $ ,:13�
2024 

(j
( 1�.000 

2025 33,000 

202s L>-� 133,ooo 
2021 ""-. y 133,ooo
Thereafter 

, � � $ 

332,500 

Total 
� Y 9971500 

C, 5. Segment disclosure note

Since the Library's operations are not con,�e� diverse and operations are managed as one department. no
segment disclosure has been provided. 

J 
6. Accumulated surplus �

Accumulated surplus consists of,��ta1 fund surpluses and reserves as follows:
uJ • 

� 
Reserves set asiQ

ev 
t:ouncil

Computer re�ment reserve 
Donatio�serve

TotalR��

Surpl� 
L't.�\Jnent in tangible capital assets
�ating surplus

apital surplus 

Employee benefits payable 
Interest on debt 

$ 

2022 

381,172 $ 
84,117 

465,289 

13,617,321 
79,015 

981,882 

(77,910) 
(19,867) 

2021 

459,127 
74218 

533,345 

13,936,487 
25,066

991,291 

(71,608) 
(22,503) 

11 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Notes to the Financial Statements 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 

6. Accumulated surplus continued

Due to Municipality 

Total surpluses 

Accumulated Surplus 

7. Budget amounts

$ 

2022 2021 

(99715001 (1 I 1301
500l 

13.582
1941 13

1728
1233 

14
1
048

1
230 $ 14,261

1
578 

The operating budget approved by Council on January 12, 2022 for 2022 is reflected on the statement of
operations. The budgets established for capital investment in tangible capital assets are on a project oriented
basis, the costs of which may be carried over one or more years, and therefore, may not be comparable with
the current year"s actual amounts. The approved budget figures have been adjusted for the purposes of the
financial statements to comply with PSAB reporting requirements as follows:

Council approved budget: 
Operating budget 

Budgeted opening balance $ 
Capital budget 

Capital Budget carried forward from prior years $ (991 1294l 
Budgeted opening balance (991

1
294! 

Add: 
Budgeted debt principal repayments 432,525 
Acquisition of tangible capital assets 9831

128 
1

1
415

1
653 

Less: 
Budgeted transfer from reserves (67,955) 
Budgeted amortization expense (636,864l 

(704
1
819! 

Budget annual deficit on statement of operations $ (280
1
460! 

12 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Schedule 1 - Tangible Capital Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

und 
L■nd Improvements ---- Leasehold � ■nd 

Sulldlng• lmprove�iiA '£qu[pmenl 
Worl<ln 

Progrm 2022 

Coat 

Balance, begiming of year 672,390 $ 11 091513 0$ 1,294,696 $ 
\, .. 

\o.1� $ 5,913,240 S 4,177 S 19,039,772 
Add: Addilions during lhe year 
Leu: Disposals during the year 
Ccn1ributions, lnlnslats and other• 

B■l■nce, end of re■r 

Accumulated amortlzatJon 

Balance, begiming of year 
Add: Amortization di.ring Iha year 
Leu: Amortization on disposal 

Balance, eftd of re■r 

2,771 

<". 
--- ____: <: \.. ___ _ 

811.181 r11,Wt.su 83,756 

.. v;V
�O!ij! 1,675,809 36,977 
;2r.= 148,046 ---...... "-------- ----- -----

2.550 

C :J9
1
SZ7 

Not book value, end of re■r S 1121141- $ 2111173 s ,,m,a58 ,._s _..,..,.. 2412
29 

� .. 
°The WOl1< in Progress (WIP) amount is rapesantative of costs transfened f(9111 wi'P into t.ddttions. 

�� v

'1,C) 
�'\. 

xt\ 
# 

� 

314,927 
(280,169) 

1,947.9911 

3,030,441 
458,738 

!280,1691 

:,12ot1
010 

! �73119811 

83,876 401,574 
{280,189) 

!83 8761 1113.876) 

___ 4.._1_77_ 19.077.301 

$ 

5,103,215 
838,11114 

(2II0,119) 

514191180 

___ 4,._
1_11_ $ 13.617,321 

13 



The Corporation of the Town of lnnisfil 

Public Library Board 

(Unaudited) Schedule 1 - Tangible Capital Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 

Land Leasehold Book• and Work In 
Land Improvements Buildings Improvement• Equipment Progress 2021 

Cost 
Balance. beg1Ming of year $ 1.294,696 $ 672.390 $ 11�513 $ 83,756 $ 6.178.434 $ 4 177 $ 19,304,966 

Add Addillons during lhe year 234.594 30130 264,724 
Less Disposals during 1he year (499,788) (499,788) 
Conlribul,ons. transfers and other' !30,1301 j30,1301 

Balance, end of year 1,294,696 672,390 11,091,513 63,756 s,s13,z40 4177 11,039,772 

Accumulated amortization 
Balance. begiM1ng of year 329,856 1 527 763 34.427 3,070.626 4,962,674 

Add Amortization during the year 30,202 148.046 2.550 459601 640,399 
Less Amortization on disposal [499,786! j499

1
78al 

Balance, end of year 360,058 1,675,809 36 977 3,030,441 5,103,285 

Net book value, end of yeer s ,,214,8116 s 312,332 s 1,415,704 $ 26.779 $ 2,882,7911 $ 4,177 $ 13,938,487 

'The Work ,n Progress (WIP} amount is representative of costs transferred from WIP Into additions. 



Policy Changes Summary 
 

 
10a.01.01  EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #E-2023-22 

• Minor formatting changes  

• Minor wording changes 

• Increase to gift values 

 

10b.01.01  EMPLOYMENT – Corrective Action Policy #E-2023-23 

• Wording changes to mirror Town of Innisfil policy 

• More robust explanation in Step 4 – Termination for Cause 

• Updating smoking infractions to include vaping tobacco or like 

products 

• Added the following under Related Policies:  

▪ Employment – Staff Code of Conduct Policy 

▪ Employment – Conflict of Interest Policy 

▪ Employment – Respectful Workplace, Harassment & 

Violence Prevention Policy 

▪ Employment Injury and Illness Prevention Policy 

10.01.01 



SUBJECT:  EMPLOYMENT - STAFF CODE OF CONDUCT POLICY 

Policy No: E-2023-22

Date: October 16, 2023 

Review Date: October 2027 

Pages: 8 

PURPOSE  
The Staff Code of Conduct policy is intended to promote high standards of ethical 
conduct.  All Staff Members are expected to carry out their responsibilities with 
honesty and integrity and in such a manner as to ensure that the Library will 
achieve its goals and objectives and thus effectively deliver library service; to 
promote the Library’s values and management philosophy; and to enhance the 
Library’s image and reputation.  This policy will establish professional standards 
and guidelines which will assist Library Staff in the discharge of their duties and 
establish the expectations in their business dealings with residents, corporations 
and other business interests who interact with Library Staff. 

POLICY 

General  
All Library Staff hold positions of trust within the community.  Every Staff Member 
must carry out their duties and responsibilities in a manner that is free of bias, 
and real or perceived conflict of interest.  Staff must strive to serve the public to 
the best of their abilities and are expected to always place the public good above 
personal gain.  The Code of Conduct has been developed and is made available 
to all Staff for the purpose of guiding behavior and to eliminate situations where 
staff actions might inadvertently tarnish the reputation of the Library and/or the 
Town.     

Whenever a Staff Member either knows they have an actual or potential conflict 
of interest, or suspects that they may be in a situation that does not meet any 
one of the standards specified in the Code of Conduct, they shall be required to 
disclose the matter and the general nature of the interest immediately in writing 

10a.01.01



 

EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #2023-22           Page 2 of 8 
 

to their Manager and the CEO, regardless of whether or not the Staff Member 
benefits from it. 
 
In the event that the CEO has, or suspects that they have a conflict, they must 
disclose the matter in writing to the Board.   
 
If a Staff Member is uncertain about a potential situation going against the 
standards of the Code of Conduct, then they should discuss it with their Manager 
as soon as is possible. 
 

Application 
This policy applies to all Library employees including, but not limited to, full-time, 
part-time, contract, seasonal, casual, and student/co-op employees. 
 

Definitions 

Family -  for the purposes of this policy, is defined as spouse, partner or co-
habitant, child, step-child, legal guardian child, siblings, parents and step-
parents. 
 

Child – child born within or outside of marriage, and includes an adopted child, 
and a person who a parent has demonstrated a settled intention to treat as a 
child of his/her family, whether or not that person is the natural parent of the 
child. 
 

Parent – a person who has demonstrated a settled intention to treat a child as a 
member of his/her family, whether or not that person is the natural parent of the 
child. 
 
Spouse – a person to whom the person is married, or with whom the person is 
living outside marriage in a conjugal relationship, if the two persons, have 
cohabited for at least one year, are together the parents of a child, or have 
together entered into a cohabitation agreement under section 53 of the Family 
Law Act. 
 
Reporting Manager is defined as the management team member who is 
assigned to monitor and review a Staff Member’s performance. 
 

Direct Reporting Relationship is defined as a relationship in which a Staff 
Member has authority to do the following to another employee who is a 
subordinate: 

● Approve or deny increments, overtime or negotiate salary levels; 

● Conduct performance appraisals; 

● Administer discipline; or 

● Direct work assignments. 
 
 
 



 

EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #2023-22           Page 3 of 8 
 

Political Activity for the purpose of this policy, includes but is not limited to: 

● Volunteering or fundraising for a candidate or a political party; 

● Supporting or opposing a candidate or a political party by displaying 
political material such as a picture, sticker, badge or button, or a lawn sign; 

● Attending events, meetings, conventions, rallies, or other political 
gatherings in support of, or in opposition to, a candidate or a political party; 

● Developing promotional material such as writing campaign speeches, 
slogans and pamphlets for a candidate or a political party; 

● Using blogs, social networking sites, a personal website or video sharing 
to express personal views in support of, or in opposition to, a candidate or 
a political party. 

 

Guidelines 

1. Business Relationships 
 

Staff Members owe their business allegiance to the Library and must, therefore, 
remain free of conflicts or relationships which can be harmful or detrimental to 
the Library’s best interests.   
 
Staff shall not engage in outside work, business or other types of activities of 
financial consequence that would: 
 

• Interfere with or influence their judgment to impartially discharge their duties 
as Library Staff; 

• Create or provide a personal or private advantage on account of their 
employment as Library Staff. 

 
Staff shall not position themselves to the extent of being able to gain personal 
benefit directly or indirectly from any contract with the Library where they can 
influence decisions or affect the outcome. 
 
Staff shall not, by virtue of their position with the Library, use information for 
personal or private gain, or for the gain of friends, relatives or any person or 
corporation having dealings with the Library.  

 
2. Personal Interests and Family Relationships 

 
A potential for conflict of interest exists where Staff or their family member(s) 
has/have an interest in a property matter, a business dealing, or similar 
circumstance that is before the Library for consideration or disposition.   

 
3. Fraud or Theft 

 
Any act of fraud or theft is deemed a violation of the Code of Conduct.  In 
general, employee fraud is an act committed which, through deceit, falsehood or 
other such behavior, either deprives the Library of its assets, property or other 



 

EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #2023-22           Page 4 of 8 
 

resources (this includes theft) or causes the Library to act to its own detriment or 
prejudice. 
 
Employee fraud may include acts committed with the intent to deceive, involving 
either misappropriation of Library assets, property or other resources or 
misrepresentation of financial or other information to conceal such 
misappropriation by such means as: 
 

● Manipulation, falsification or alteration of records or documents; 

● Suppression of information, transactions or documents; 

● Recording of transactions without substance; 

● Misapplication of accounting principles; 

● Administering transactions contrary to approved policies; 

● Proprietary control of information, products and systems. 
 
All Staff Members are required to work in accordance with the Library‘s controls 
established to prevent fraudulent misconduct and all applicable laws, regulations 
and government guidelines.  All Staff shall exercise honesty, integrity, objectivity 
and diligence and shall not knowingly be a party to any fraudulent activity, 
including theft.  Subject to the information or knowledge obtained, all Staff is 
required to report any knowledge or suspicion of fraud to either their manager or 
the CEO. 
 
All Library Managers are responsible for ensuring that adequate internal controls 
are in place to prevent and detect fraud.  Management is accountable for 
monitoring workplace activity and ensuring all Staff is aware of, and in 
compliance with, controls, policies and procedures. 
 
All suspected incidents of fraud or theft committed against the Library shall be 
viewed as acts of criminal activity and the consequences arising out of 
investigations respecting such behavior will be responded to in a manner 
commensurate with the investigation findings. 
 
4. Use of Library Property 

 
Unless expressly authorized through an employment agreement, by the Board or 
under special circumstances as may be determined by the CEO or designate, 
Staff shall not use the Library’s property, equipment, supplies, computer software 
or services for activities not associated with the discharge of official duties.   
 
5. Gifts, Benefits and Solicitation 

 
The public’s perception respecting the integrity of the Library and its Staff is of 
great importance.  Staff is expected to make decisions on behalf of the Library 
based on impartial and objective assessment of information, free from any 
influence of gifts, favours or services.   
 



 

EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #2023-22           Page 5 of 8 
 

A Library Staff Member may accept normal hospitality with a party engaged in 
doing business as long as the hospitality is:  

● valued at no more than $50.00 including tax; 

● of a nominal nature (e.g. business lunch or dinner);   

● a token exchange as part of the protocol of doing business;   

● a normal presentation made to persons participating in public 
functions; or  

● acceptance of an invitation to a social or recreational event (provided 
that advance approval is obtained from the Staff Member’s supervising 
manager or the CEO or designate when the value exceeds $50.00).  

 
In the event that an employee is offered a gift that has a legitimate business 
purpose and is valued greater than $50.00, the employee should request 
approval from the CEO. 
 
Library Staff must not accept any gift or hospitality if this may create a perception 
that the Staff Member has been influenced in making a business decision as a 
consequence of accepting such gift or hospitality.  The Staff Member’s Manager 
should monitor the situation and bring the matter to the Staff Member’s attention 
if there is a risk that such a perception is occurring. 
 
Library Staff may be required to complete a ‘Disclosure of Gift or Benefit’ form 
where a gift or benefit over $50.00 is received.  Subsequent review by and 
discussion with the Staff Member’s Manager may require the return of the gifts or 
benefits in question. 
 

6. Confidential Information and Preservation of Records 
 

Staff has a duty not to disclose or release either verbally or in written form, any 
confidential information or material acquired by virtue of their position with the 
Library unless obligated or compelled to do so through the Municipal Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Personal Privacy Act (MFIPPA) or other provincial 
or federal legislation, or as a result of a police investigation or through some 
other formal inquiry or a court proceeding. 
 
In the event a Staff Member receives an inquiry for disclosure of information 
under MFIPPA or other provincial or federal legislation, the request should be 
referred immediately to the CEO who will review the request and determine 
whether the Library is obligated to disclose the information. 
 
Staff also has a duty not to use any confidential information or material acquired 
by virtue of their position with the Library for any purpose other than the 
discharge of their duties. 
 
All personnel matters and files of any Staff or former Staff of the Library will be 
kept in strictest confidence within the Administration Office and knowledge of its 
contents will be available only to those with appropriate authorization.    



 

EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #2023-22           Page 6 of 8 
 

 
MFIPPA places strict obligations on the Town and the Library to preserve 
documents and records.  Staff must comply with any measures that the Town 
and the Library may adopt with respect to the preservation and security of 
documents, which may include (but are not limited to): 

● Ensuring that records are stored and filed in designated places (for 
paper records) or drives and directories (for electronic documents) so 
they can be easily found; 

● Ensuring that records are not deleted, destroyed, thrown out or 
shredded without authorization; 

● Maintaining sensitive documents in locked filing cabinets or secure 
areas; 

● Restricting access to documents to those with appropriate 
authorization, in which case no Staff shall attempt to access those 
documents without authorization or disclose the documents to a 
person without authorization; 

● Using password-protection or encryption on electronic documents and 
devices. 

 
Staff obligations with respect to the Library’s and Town’s confidential information 
continue after their employment with Library ends, regardless of the reason for 
the employment ending.  When employment ends, Staff must return all Library 
materials, property and confidential information to the Library, without keeping 
any copies either physical or electronic. (Please see current IPL Confidentiality 
Policy.) 
 

8. Permitted Political Activity 
 

Staff may engage in political activity in federal, provincial and municipal elections.  
However, they are responsible for ensuring that engaging in such activities does 
not impair, or is not perceived as impairing, their ability to perform their duties for 
the Library in a politically impartial manner. 
 
To make an informed decision as to whether to engage in a political activity and 
whether there is a potential it will impair or be perceived as impairing their 
impartiality, Staff should consider the nature and extent of the activity, the nature 
of the Staff Member’s duty and level of responsibility within the Library, and their 
degree of personal visibility within the community.  If Staff is uncertain about 
whether a certain political activity is appropriate, this should be discussed with 
their Manager. 
 
In all cases, Staff must: 

● Comply with all provincial and federal legislation; 

● Ensure that participation in provincial and federal political campaigns 
does not interfere with the performance of their duties, or create a 
conflict with the Library’s interests;   



 

EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #2023-22           Page 7 of 8 
 

● Not be involved in any campaign or political activity during paid 
working hours or in the workplace at any time; 

● Not provide endorsements of any candidate(s) for any elected or 
appointed office based upon their position with the Library. 

 

9. Media Relations 
 
The media is an important vehicle for communicating the Library’s services and 
programs.  As such, all Staff is expected to comply with this policy, and Staff 
Members are not to speak with the media unless authorized to do so. 
 
Objective information related to policies or decisions adopted by the Library 
Board should be transmitted formally by the CEO or designate and as 
appropriate, the Board Chair may be expected to address the media on behalf of 
the Board.  Other Library Staff may be requested to speak to the media to 
provide clarification or specific details related to the delivery of a library service, 
program or event.  
 
If Staff who is not authorized to speak with the media about the matter in 
question receives a request for comment, they must not comment.  Instead, the 
inquiry shall be referred to Library Management. 
 
Media communication shall be conducted in a manner that is professional, 
factual and non-confrontational.  Under no circumstances shall Staff put forth 
speculative, subjective or personal insights or comments on any policies or 
decisions on behalf of the Board.   
 
10. Employment of Relatives 
 
The Library, as a public organization, encourages employment opportunities to 
be available to all persons on the basis of applicable qualifications and skills.  
With this goal in mind, the Library does permit relatives and immediate family 
members to work within the Library, subject to the following and as per the 
Library’s current Recruitment and Selection Policy: 

• Family members shall not be allowed to work in a direct reporting 
relationship to another family member. 

• All existing Staff must inform the CEO immediately of any change in their 
personal or job related status that may be affected by this policy. 

 
11. Ombudsman 
 
The Ontario Ombudsman has the power to investigate any decision, 
recommendation, act or omission in the course of the Library’s administration.   
If the Town appoints a Town Ombudsman, that person will have the power to 
investigate such decisions, recommendations, acts or omissions instead of the 
Ontario Ombudsman.   
 



 

EMPLOYMENT – Staff Code of Conduct Policy #2023-22           Page 8 of 8 
 

The availability of the Ombudsman is an important measure to ensure 
transparency and accountability in local government.  Therefore, Staff is 
expected to cooperate with any investigation by the Ombudsman.   
The Ombudsman has the power to require Town Staff /Library Staff to give him 
or her information and produce documents relevant to the investigation and to 
examine individuals under oath.  Staff is expected to cooperate with such 
requests.   
 
Information or documents should not be provided to the Ombudsman if they are 
subject to a legal privilege (for example communications between the Library and 
its legal representatives or where disclosure would be prohibited under 
applicable freedom of information legislation).  A Staff Member who suspects that 
a privilege may apply should consult with their Manager. 
 

12.   Concluding Statements 
 

The Code of Conduct is made available to every Staff Member as a guide to help 
them take appropriate action to avoid and to eliminate situations where Staff 
actions might inadvertently tarnish the reputation of the Library and/or the Town 
of Innisfil.  As issues and questions arise, Staff is encouraged to seek guidance 
from their reporting manager, the CEO or designate.  Staff is expected to adhere 
to the highest standard of personal and professional integrity, and abide by the 
Code of Conduct at all times. 
 
Every Staff Member must acknowledge receipt, understanding and adherence to 
the Code of Conduct.  Failure to comply with the Code of Conduct may result in 
extensive corrective action, including discipline and/or discharge. 
 
 

Related Policies 
OPERATING - Confidentiality and the Protection of Privacy Policy; 

EMPLOYMENT - Conflict of Interest Policy; 

EMPLOYMENT – Recruitment & Selection Policy. 

EMPLOYMENT – Social Media Policy 
 
 
 
 
Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, October 16, 2023,  
Motion Number:  2023.XX 
 
Supersedes Policy #E-2019-20, approved October 22, 2019, Motion #2019.75; 
and Policy #E-2016-06, approved March 21, 2016, Motion #2016.30; & 
Policy #E-2011-24, approved November 21, 2011, Motion #2011.73; & Schedule 
G of the Town’s Employee By-Law #038-06 appended to Policy Number 2006-
20, approved June 12, 2006. 



SUBJECT:     EMPLOYMENT – CORRECTIVE ACTION POLICY 

Policy No:  E-2023-23

Date:  October 16, 2023 

Review Date: October 2027 

Pages: 6     

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to provide positive feedback and recognition to 
Library employees who do their work well and who display a positive attitude in 
the workplace.  

As an organization that promotes continuous learning and development, 
corrective action forms part of an overall program of performance 
improvement/enhancement. The policy provides fair and consistent corrective 
action measures and ensures clarity and awareness of the corrective action 
system. 

POLICY 

General  
The objectives of the Corrective Action Policy are: 

• to explain when and how corrective action will be applied;

• to improve behaviour or address job performance issues; and

• to ensure that all employees are fully aware of the Corrective Action

system as described in this policy, and that they understand the process.

Application 
This policy applies to all Library employees including, but not limited to, full-time, 
part-time, contract, seasonal, casual, and student/co-op employees. 
. 

10b.01.01 



 

EMPLOYMENT – Corrective Action Policy #E-2023-23   Page 2 of 6 
 

 
 

Guidelines 

Responsibility 
Senior Management is responsible for ensuring that the policy is applied 
consistently within their respective service areas and in line with the spirit of the 
policy. 
 

Corrective Actions 

Coaching and Counselling: 
Where appropriate, an attempt will be made to correct inappropriate conduct or 
inadequate performance by coaching or informally counselling employees. As a 
learning organization, it is recognized that some instances would not warrant 
formal corrective action. Managers and Supervisors are required to document 
these learning opportunities. If there is a further occurrence of the same or 
similar nature, the employee will generally be subject to corrective action in 
accordance with this policy.  
 
Informal counselling or coaching may not be appropriate based on the nature 
and/or severity of the misconduct. Management reserves the right to determine 
when to invoke formal corrective action under this policy and to determine the 
appropriate level of discipline at all times.   Employees who violate the Library’s 
policies and/or standard operating procedures may be subjected to discipline up 
to and including termination.  
 

Progressive Disciplinary Measures: 
 
Step 1 - Verbal Warning:  
The employee will be counselled verbally as to the nature of the infraction and 
the action they must take to correct it. Verbal warnings will be recorded in writing 
for documentation purposes and kept in the employee’s file. 
 
Step 2 - Written Warning:  
The employee will be given a written warning which will list the nature of the 
infraction and the action necessary to correct it. Written warnings will be kept in 
the employee’s files. 
 
Step 3 - Suspension:  
The employee may be suspended without pay for  a set time period (e.g., two 
days), depending on the severity of the misconduct. Employees may not use 
vacation days, lieu time, or any other available “time bank” to cover the period of 
suspension. Suspensions will be documented in writing and kept in the 
employee’s file. 
  



 

EMPLOYMENT – Corrective Action Policy #E-2023-23   Page 3 of 6 
 

 
Step 4 - Termination for Cause:  
If reasonable efforts to change conduct fail, if performance does not improve, or if 
the employee commits a Level Three infraction, the Library may terminate the 
employee’s employment for just cause. If the employee’s conduct giving rise to 
termination for just cause also amounts to willful misconduct, disobedience, or 
willful neglect of duty, as defined by the Employment Standards Act (ESA), the 
Library may terminate their employment without notice, pay in lieu of notice, 
severance pay or any other liability.  Otherwise, upon the termination of the 
employee’s employment for just cause, they will receive the minimum notice or 
pay in lieu of notice, plus severance pay (if applicable), and benefits continuation 
which they are entitled to pursuant to the ESA.  The employee will also receive 
any other minimum entitlements which they are entitled to under the ESA, 
including outstanding wages and all accrued and unused vacation pay, up to and 
including the date of termination, following which all payments and benefit 
participation will cease. 
 
The type(s)  of discipline imposed will depend on the nature of the infraction and 
the employee’s disciplinary record. If the matter is serious, the Library may 
proceed to a higher level of discipline or termination of employment, even on the 
first occurrence. Nothing in this policy prevents the Library from skipping/omitting 
steps or repeating steps in the process. 
 
Repeated acts of misconduct, inappropriate behaviour or continued inadequate 
behaviours will result in the imposition of greater discipline, up to and including 
termination of employment. An employee’s employment may be terminated for 
cause if repeated efforts to correct conduct have failed, or if the employee has 
committed a first offence that is of serious nature. 
 
All forms of corrective action will form part of the employee file. Employees will 
have an opportunity to sign the discipline notice and acknowledge receipt. If the 
employee refuses to sign the discipline notice, the Library will mark it as “refused 
to sign” but the employee will still be bound by it. 
 
Where circumstances warrant, the Library may place an acknowledgement of 
improvement in the employee file. 
 

Infraction Levels 
 
For greater clarity, below are general guidelines as to what types of conduct 
warrant corrective actions. These are examples only and should not be 
considered an exhaustive list of all possible disciplinary matters.   
 

Please note that the Library may proceed to a higher level of corrective action 
even if the infractions are different. For example, if an employee were to leave 
work without authorization on one occasion, and interfere with the work of others 
at a later date, the Library might apply a higher level of discipline to the second 
infraction, even though they were both Level One infractions. 



 

EMPLOYMENT – Corrective Action Policy #E-2023-23   Page 4 of 6 
 

 

Level One Infractions: 
Level One infractions are minor violations. Corrective action measures for these 
types of infractions will generally progress from coaching or counselling to verbal  
and written warnings, to suspensions. Ultimately, the employee can be 
terminated for cause following repeated level one infractions.  If the misconduct 
is serious enough, the Library may proceed to a higher level of discipline 
immediately.  
 
Examples of Level One infractions include: 
 

• Unauthorized absenteeism and lateness; 

• Leaving work without authorization, including leaving before the end of a 
regularly scheduled work day or not being ready to work at the beginning 
of the work day; 

• Interfering with the work of others, including excessive non-work related 
conversations, emails etc.; 

• Poor performance,  productivity and work quality, including failing to meet 
acceptable job standards negligence and failure to fulfill job duties; 

• Failure to maintain the employee’s work area, including tidiness and 
sanitary conditions; 

• Smoking and/or vaping tobacco or like products in an unauthorized area 
within the workplace;  and 

• Minor breaches of workplace rules and policies. 
 

Level Two Infractions: 
Level Two infractions are moderate violations for which the Library will generally 
apply more serious corrective action, such as a written warning or suspension. If 
the misconduct is serious enough, Management may immediately proceed to a 
higher level of discipline.  
 
Examples of Level Two infractions include: 
 

• Insubordination, including failure to abide by a reasonable workplace 
directive; 

• Failure to disclose driver’s licensing issues (i.e suspension, licensing 
restrictions, etc.) in situations where job duties require a value driver’s 
license; 

• Moderate health and safety violations, such as failure to wear personal 
protective equipment; 

• Disorderly conduct or “horseplay” on the Library’s property or at library 
events;  

• Abuse of the Library’s email and Internet access; 

• Excessive social media use for  personal reasons during work hours; 

• Spreading gossip and rumours about other employees and/or the Library, 
including on social media sites; 

• Failure to fulfill job duties and causing disruption to productivity, loss or 
damage to equipment or any other disruption;  and 



 

EMPLOYMENT – Corrective Action Policy #E-2023-23   Page 5 of 6 
 

• Failing to comply with requests for documents in support of an absence 
from work, such as medical notes.  
 

Level Three Infractions:  
Level Three infractions are the most serious violations and may result in 
termination for cause upon the first occurrence.  
 
Examples of Level Three infractions include: 
 

● Dishonesty, fraud or breach of trust; 

● Willful misconduct or neglect of duty; 

● Harassment, sexual harassment or bullying; 

● Violent behaviour, including fighting and making threatening statements; 

● Possession of weapons, on the Library’s property; 

● Willful destruction of the Library’s property; 

● Failing to comply with the Library’s security procedures; 

● Serious health and safety violations; 

● Repeated failure to disclose of driver’s licensing issues (i.e. suspension, 
licensing restrictions etc.) in situations where job duties require a valid 
driver’s license; 

● Job abandonment, including failing to return to work after a scheduled 
absence (such as a vacation or sick leave) and failing to report to work as 
scheduled, without a reasonable excuse or without notifying the Library 
directly; 

● Theft, fraud or misappropriation of the Library’s property, documents and 
trade secrets; 

● Violation of the Staff Code of Conduct Policy; 

● Violation of the Conflict of Interest Policy;   

● Violation of the Respectful Workplace, Harassment & Violence Prevention 
Policy; and   

● Violation of the Injury and Illness Prevention Policy. 
 
 
The Library values and appreciates the hard work and dedication of all Staff. 
Every effort will be made to provide positive feedback and recognition to 
employees who do their work well and who display a positive attitude in the 
workplace. The corrective action policy will ensure inappropriate conduct is 
addressed in a consistent and fair manner.  

   
  



 

EMPLOYMENT – Corrective Action Policy #E-2023-23   Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 

Related Policies: 
Employment – Performance Management & Development Policy 
Employment - Staff Code of Conduct Policy 
Employment - Conflict of Interest Policy 
Employment - Respectful Workplace, Harassment & Violence Prevention Policy 
Employment - Injury and Illness Prevention Policy 
 
 
 
Approved by the Innisfil Public Library Board, October 16, 2023 
Motion Number:  2023.XX 
 
Supersedes Policy #E-2022-01, approved January 17, 2022, Motion #2022.07; 
and  Policy #E-2018-02, approved January 15, 2018, Motion #2018.09; & 
Employment – Progressive Discipline Policy #E-2014-07, approved February 18, 
2014, Motion #2014.13; & Policy #2010-13, approved May 17, 2010, Motion 
#2010.42. 


	2a - 2023OCT16 IPL Board Agenda - DRAFT
	5a.01.01 2023SEPT18-Board Minutes Draft
	6a.01.01 How to access banned books through this free digital library _ Mashable
	6a.02.01 The boring solution to book-banning bur..
	6a.03.01 Libraries with individually owned books..
	6a.06.01 Canadian Guidelines on Library and Info..
	6a.07.01 Seniors Strategy _ York Region
	6a.08.01 Can we stop chronic loneliness_ York Region takes lead in prevention strategy
	7a.01.01 CEO Report Sept 2023
	September 2023 Cover
	September 2023 CEO Report

	7b.01.01 Municipal Council Report September2023 (1)
	7e.01.01 2023.08.17 JHSC Meeting Agenda Minutes Draft
	8a.01.01 LIB-10-2023 Mileage Reimbursement Rate Change
	9a.01.01 2021 Unaudited  Financial Statements
	9b.01.01 2022 Unaudited Financial Statements
	10. Policy Change Summary
	10a.01.01 E-Staff Code of Conduct Policy#E-2023-22 - Clean
	10b.01.01 E-CorrectiveActionPolicy #E-2023-23 Clean



